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Welcome
This Annual Report outlines West Gippsland Healthcare
Group’s (WGHG) activities and performance from 1 July 2020
to 30 June 2021 and provides detailed financial statements
about the organisation.
WGHG is a public hospital established under the Health
Services Act 1988 (Vic). The incorporation came into effect
in May 1997 when services across the community came
together under the one umbrella name, West Gippsland
Healthcare Group.
These include the Hospital, Community Health Services at
Warragul and Rawson, Andrews House Residential Aged Care,
Cooinda Lodge Residential Aged Care, and the Warragul Linen
Service.
During 2020-2021, WGHG was accountable, through the
Board of Directors, to the responsible Minister for Health:
From July 1st 2020 to 26th September 2020
Jenny Mikakos MP
Minister for Health
Minister for Ambulance Services

Cover image: Warragul & Drouin Gazette
photographer Michael Robinson captures a moment after
Drouin paramedic Scott Ashworth received his COVID-19
vaccination from nurse immuniser Alison Spragg. Scott
was among the first group of health workers to receive
a COVID-19 vaccination when the WGHG Community
Vaccination Clinic opened at the Warragul Goods Shed in
June.

From 26th September 2020 to June 30th 2021
The Hon Martin Foley MP
Minister for Health
Minister for Equality
Minister for Ambulance Services
This report is also available online at:
www.wghg.com.au/publications.
Printed copies are available by contacting our
Public Relations Manager on 03 5623 0600.

Photography and Content Editor: Karyn O'Brien
Graphic Design and Print: Nicola Keyzer - Dragons Ink
Acknowledgements:
West Gippsland Healthcare Group acknowledges the funding support
provided by the Victorian Government.

We acknowledge the traditional owners of the land on which our services are
located, and we pay our respects to Elders past, present and future.
Thank you to the staff, volunteers, patients and supporters of the West Gippsland
Healthcare Group.
ABN: 39 261 883 406
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Repor t from the Chair and Chief Executive

Christine Holland
MCareerDev
GradCertCarCounsel
TSTC(HomeEco) FAICD MAHRI
PCDAA

Dan Weeks
RN BBus(Acc) MHA GAICD
FACHM CHE

Chief Executive Officer

On behalf of the Board and Staff
of West Gippsland Healthcare
Group (WGHG) it is our
pleasure to provide the Report of
Operations for the year ending
30th June 2021.
COVID-19
It will come as no surprise that this was a year dominated by
COVID-19. There were many adjustments and changes as we
responded as part of the health system to the many threats
that all of us faced from this viral outbreak. At various stages
throughout the year, the health services and our aged care
facilities were largely locked down, with little opportunity for
people to visit loved ones. Masks and protective equipment
were an everyday norm and much of our business was
conducted virtually. In December we held our first ever virtual
Annual General Meeting, something we never imagined we
would do pre-COVID-19.
We also found ourselves creating new services for our
community and were very proud of the establishment of
the COVID vaccination centre at the Warragul Goods Shed,
providing Pfizer and AstraZeneca vaccines for our staff and
community, in partnership with the Gippsland Region Public
Health Unit (GRPHU).
So while COVID-19 was ever present and provided many
challenges, it did not prevent us focussing on meeting the
health needs of our community.

Activity
The number of hospital admissions increased by 17% to
17,385. With inpatient bed numbers limited and operating
at capacity, there was much focus on managing patients on
a same day basis or in the community. The growth reflects
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Board Chair
the benefits of having the four Short Stay Unit beds running
for the whole year and the growth of other same day services
such as oncology, the infusion clinic and the haemodialysis
unit. There was also 31% growth in the Hospital in the Home
program as more patients were supported in their home.
Elective surgery was increased from last year but slightly
below target, reflecting the impact of the COVID outbreaks on
non-urgent elective surgery. The Emergency Department
had periods of both high and low activity, finishing with slightly
more presentations than last year but lower than would
be expected without the presence of COVID-19. Our birth
numbers increased by 95 babies to a total of 974 for the year,
still within the 1,000 birth cap we imposed in 2014 for safety
reasons and to ensure access for our local community.
Our Community based services adapted to service delivery in
a COVID environment, with significant increases in telehealth
and virtual appointments. Our residential aged care facilities
worked hard to keep our most vulnerable consumers safe
from COVID-19, as well as reviewing our models and staffing
in the context of the Aged Care Royal Commission findings.

Finance
We are very pleased to report a breakeven result for the
year. This reflects very strong support from the Department
of Health, which recognised and responded to the growth
in demand we were experiencing with record funding. The
Department also fully funded our role in supporting the
Victorian Government’s response to COVID-19.
We have been fortunate to receive additional loan funding to
expand the successful Energy Performance Contract (EPC) that
was established in 2014 and has reduced electricity use by 30%,
reduced gas usage by 15% and water by 10%. The additional
loan will allow the removal of the central steam unit, install a
new boiler and pipework, additional solar panels and increased
LED lighting. The project will reduce carbon emissions by 1,115
tonnes and generate annual savings of $340,000.
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Hospital admissions increased by 17% to 17,385.
There was a 31% growth in the Hospital in the Home
program and birth numbers increased by 95 babies
to 974 compared to the previous year.

We were also delighted with the announcement of $4.5m
funding from the Commonwealth Government for the
construction of a Chemotherapy Day Unit to operate as part
of the Victorian Cancer Plan 2020-2024. The purpose built
treatment unit will provide a dedicated space and is expected
to be completed by December 2022.
We have maintained a close relationship with the Victorian
Health Building Authority (VHBA) which remains a key partner
to WGHG. As well as supporting our current infrastructure,
VHBA continues to support our efforts to present to
government a well prepared Business Case detailing options
for a longer term future.

Our Culture
The Board acknowledges the considerable additional strain
to the health and wellbeing of staff that has been created
by COVID-19 and the many changes as we respond to the
challenges of growing demand. We continue to be inspired
by the resilience and commitment of staff to their various
professions and service of the community. The efforts and
goodwill are never taken for granted and we continue to engage
with staff to support them and work on meeting their needs.

Community
Once again the support of the Community both delights
and humbles us. The major fundraising activity, the
Annual Appeal, was an outstanding success, funding much
needed equipment. The Opportunity Shop Auxiliaries at
Drouin and Trafalgar continued to thrive and provide much
needed support, and yet again numerous community based
fundraising efforts provided much appreciated support. We
are delighted to recognise these groups and many other
individual supporters on pages 27-30 of this Annual Report.

has been another challenging year for both and we thank
and acclaim our staff for continuing to deliver recognised
excellence in care for our community. The positive reputation
that West Gippsland Healthcare Group holds is due to our
talented staff and the leadership provided by a highly skilled
Executive Team. The community has been very patient and
understanding as population growth continues to place
pressure on services. It has not been a year that has allowed
us to interact in person with community but your support is
highly valued.
The Board and the Executive Team have been focused on
matters of governance and leading the organisation into the
future to ensure sound decision making in a world of continual
and unexpected change.
At the end of June the Board farewelled two Directors –
Leanne Williams and Susan Lloyd. Both gave exceptional
service to the Board and to West Gippsland Healthcare Group
as we managed in an environment previously unknown to us
through the onset of COVID-19. We thank them for their work
over a turbulent three-year period.
In closing, it is also appropriate to acknowledge and thank our
many community partners, including our local members of
Parliament, Victorian Department of Health, health providers,
regional organisations and those within West Gippsland
including Baw Baw Shire Council.

Christine Holland
Board Chair
21 September, 2021

Thankyou

Dan Weeks

Commitment and dedication are two regularly used
expressions in acknowledging our staff and community. It

Chief Executive Officer
21 September, 2021
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Photo: First jab done! WGHG Board Director Adam Selent had his vaccination
dose at the WGHG vaccination clinic at the Warragul Goods Shed
administered by WGHG Nurse Specialist Nadine McDonald.
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About Us
West Gippsland Healthcare Group (WGHG)
is a customer-focused health organisation
providing acute care, residential care
and community health services to more
than 53,300 people in the rural, urban
residential, agricultural and industrial
areas located within the Baw Baw Shire
and beyond.
WGHG’s main hospital campus is in Warragul with allied
and community health-based hubs in Warragul, Rawson and
Trafalgar and residential aged care facilities in Warragul and
Trafalgar. It also operates the Warragul Linen Service.
Employing 1,366 staff, WGHG is the largest employer in West
Gippsland.
WGHG re-defined its Organisational Values using results from
team-led behaviour development sessions with WGHG staff,
lead leaders, executive and Board.

Our Vision
To deliver the best health outcomes for the
West Gippsland community

Our Mission
To improve the health and wellbeing of
our community by enabling access to high
quality, contemporary, person-centred
healthcare.

Our Values
Our behaviours and decision making centres around Our
Values of:

c Respect –
be treated

c Leadership – we role model the desired
c
c
c

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

we treat others as we would like to

behaviours and speak out when this is not
demonstrated
Accountability – we take personal
responsibility for our actions and results
Collaboration – we work effectively with our
consumers, staff and community
Improvement – we look for opportunities to
improve our services and outcomes

Annual Report 2020-21
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Our Histor y
1888 The community established a Hospital on land donated
by Mary Sargeant to service the area between
Melbourne and Sale.

1895 Warragul District Hospital completed.
1908 Warragul District Hospital officially opened.
1924 Name change to West Gippsland Hospital (WGH).
1936 The original wooden Hospital building redeveloped.
1939 The foundation stone of the new brick Hospital laid by
Mr Dunstan.

1940 The new Hospital opened by Sir Winston Duggan.
1970 Eastern extensions to the Hospital opened. The
Hospital expanded to 144 beds.

1978 Stage 1 of Cooinda Lodge nursing home built,
accommodating 28 residents.

1986 Stage 2 of Cooinda Lodge added, accommodating 56
residents.
	The Warragul Linen Service moved into purpose-built
premises in Ley Street.

1996 A Community Services Centre was established in
Warragul.
Stage 1 Redevelopment of Hospital completed.

1997 The various health services provided across the
community were brought together under the umbrella
name of West Gippsland Healthcare Group (WGHG).
	Rawson Community Health Centre incorporated into
WGHG.
	Andrews House opened, accommodating 30 residents.

1998 Baw Baw Health and Community Care Centre opened
in Drouin, a joint venture with the Baw Baw Shire.
Stage 2 Redevelopment of the Hospital officially
opened.

2005 Extensions to Andrews House in Trafalgar completed,
accommodating 50 residents.
	Queen Street Community Services building
redeveloped.
	Extensions to Warragul Linen Service completed to
accommodate new continuous batch washing system.
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2006 Community Rehabilitation Centre relocation project
commenced.
	Stage 3 Redevelopment of the Hospital, incorporating
the High Dependency and Midwifery Units completed.

2007 Community Health and Community Mental Health
project completed.

2008 Community Rehabilitation Centre redevelopment
underneath Cooinda Lodge completed. Centenary of
opening of first Warragul District Hospital celebrated
Centenary history book ‘Of the People...For the
People’ and Centenary quilt launched.

2009 WGHG awarded Premier’s Award for Regional Health
Service of the Year.

2010 WGH Drouin Auxiliary 50th anniversary celebrated.
	Permanent home purchased for Trafalgar Community
Health Services.
	Extensions to Drouin Opportunity Shop completed.

2011 Feasibility study for redevelopment of West Gippsland
Hospital site commenced.

2012 Building extension works commenced to the
Emergency Department.
	New physicians consulting rooms, education facilities,
teleconferencing facilities and a new home for the
District Nursing Service completed.
	Study identifies Lardners Track in Drouin East as
preferred site for a new Hospital.

2013 Emergency Department redevelopment completed
and officially opened by The Hon David Davis MP 17th
May.
A record breaking 1020 babies born at WGH.

2014 The first self-funded research program announced,
with $100,000 made available to support clinical staff
to undertake research programs.

2015 Relocated High Dependency Unit within Medical Unit
to expand the number of postnatal and medical unit
beds.

2016 Constructed five units in Sargeant Street
Warragul, to provide on-site accommodation for
visiting clinicians. Completed $5.8m Energy
Performance Contract (EPC) asset refresh and
major refurbishment of Cooinda Lodge.
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2017 WGHG awarded Excellence in Women’s Health award
for its Positive Pregnancy Program.
	Completed masterplan and feasibility studies to
develop detailed proposals for a new hospital on the
current site or a new hospital on the greenfields site at
Lardners Track in Drouin East.
	Secured funding to build a Short Stay Unit in the
Emergency Department and a third Operating Theatre.

2018 Monash University expanded their site in Sargeant

2020 Opened the new Short Stay Unit and the new third
Operating Theatre. Replaced the hospital public lift,
two new sterilisers in Theatre and Reverse Osmosis
water system, kitchen plant, and new nurse call bell
and communications system.

2021 Established a community vaccination clinic at the
Warragul Goods Shed building to administer COVID-19
vaccinations to the Baw Baw community and health
workers.

Street adding a demountable building.

2019 Completed construction of five additional units
in Sargeant Street, Warragul to provide on-site
accommodation for visiting clinicians. Constructed a
new eight bed Short Stay Unit next to the Emergency
Department, a new roadway and car parking at the
front of the hospital and third Operating Theatre.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Photo: Healthcare workers wait the prescribed 15 minutes
after receiving a COVID-19 vaccination at the
WGHG community vaccination clinic at the
Warragul Goods Shed.
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Our Ser vices as at 30 June 2021
Aged Care
Andrews House Aged Care Facility
Cooinda Lodge Aged Care Facility
Community Aged Care Services Respite
Care

Allied & Community Health
Aboriginal Hospital Liaison

Continuing and Complex
Care

Neonatology

Geriatric Evaluation & Management
(GEM) -Subacute Care

Oncology

Transitional Care Program-Subacute Care

Orthopaedic Surgery

Hospital Admission Risk Program

Paediatric Medicine

Post-Acute Care

Paediatric Surgery

Residential In Reach

Pain Management

Obstetrics
Ophthalmology

Counselling Services (Children and
Family Services Counselling and Case
Management, Generalist and Family
Violence counselling).

Contract Services

Pre-Admission

Breast Screen

Renal Medicine

Child Safe and Family Violence

Endoscopy

Urodynamic Service

Cognitive Dementia & Memory Service
(CDAMS)

Pathology
Pharmacy

Community Allied Health Team (CAHT)

Support Services

Radiology

Administration

Palliative Care (inpatients)

Community Health Nurse Project
Continence assessment and treatment
service
Diabetes Nurse Education
First Call – Central Intake Service
Health Promotion
National Disability Insurance Scheme
(NDIS) program

Business Services

Home Nursing Service

Casemix

District Nursing Service

Central Sterile Supply Department

- Hospital in the Home (HITH)

Consumer Engagement & Volunteering

- Palliative Care Nursing

Contract Management

- McGrath Breast Care Nurse

Engineering Services

- Infusion Clinic

Environmental Services
Finance

Rawson Community Health Centre
Wellness and Re-ablement

Hospital (Acute)

Home and Community Care Program for
Younger People (HACC PYP)

Anaesthesia

Allied Health & Community
Rehabilitation Service

Breast Surgery

Cardiac Rehabilitation Service

Day Surgery

Dietetics

Dental Surgery

Occupational Therapy

Diabetes Education

Physiotherapy

Ear Nose & Throat Surgery

Social Work

Emergency Medicine

Speech Pathology

Gastroenterology

Breast Feeding Support
Cardiology

General Medicine

Business Units

General Surgery

Cafeteria

Gynaecology

Consulting Suites

Haemodialysis

Salary Packaging

High Dependency Care

Warragul Linen Service

Midwifery
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Food Services
Health Information Services
Human Resources
Infection Control
Information, Communications &
Technology
Learning & Development
Library
Pay Office
Quality and Safety Unit
Public Relations, Fundraising & Donations
Reception (Hospital)
Security & Car Parking
Supply & Purchasing
Work Health & Wellbeing
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Corporate Governance

Photo: Andrews House resident Elaine Smith was one of
the first to be vaccinated against COVID-19 when
the Gippsland Region Public Health Unit travelled
to Trafalgar to vaccinate aged care residents.
Elaine is with nurse immuniser Alison Spragg and
CEO Dan Weeks.
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Board of Directors: 2020 - 2021
Our Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of WGHG is appointed by the GovernorIn-Council on the recommendation of the Minister for Health
and Ambulance Services in accordance with the Health
Services Act 1988.
During 2020-2021, WGHG was accountable through its Board
of Directors to Jenny Mikakos MP Minister for Health, Minister
for Ambulance Services from 1st July 2020 to 26th September
2021 and the Hon. Martin Foley MP Minister for Health,
Minister for Ambulance Services, Minister for Equality from 26TH
September 2020 to end of June 2021.

Board functions
The functions of the Board of Directors are to:
• oversee and manage the Group
• ensure services provided by the Group comply with the
requirements of the Act and aims of the Group

Governance by the Board is achieved through:
• strategic planning
• effective management of the Chief Executive Officer
• funding of service agreements
• local policy setting
• regular reviews of the Group’s by-laws and strategic plans

Board Sub-Committees
The Board Directors met eleven times throughout the year and
were active members of various Board Sub-Committees set
up to assist in monitoring the Group’s various operations.
c A udit & Finance Committee: Leanne Williams, Farhat
Firdous, Josh Chikuse, Jayman Prestidge
cQ
 uality & Safety Committee: Jo-Anne Moorfoot, Sara
Brentnall, Susan Lloyd, Adam Selent
c B oard Performance & Remuneration Committee: Christine
Holland, Jo-Anne Moorfoot, Sarah Lukies.
The Board establishes Working Groups for appropriate
projects on an ‘as needs’ basis.

Photo: Rainbow over West Gippsland Hospital captured by Alyson Mills.
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Board of Directors: 2020 - 2021

Christine Holland
MCareerDev
GradCertCarCounsel
TSTC(HomeEco) FAICD
MAHRI PCDAA

HR & Career Consultant
Position: Board Chair
Commenced as a Board Director July 2014
Member of the Board Performance & Remuneration
Committee (Chair)
Board meetings attended (100%)

Jo-Anne Moorfoot
BAppSc GradDipBA
GAICD CertProjMan

Executive Director
Healthcare Governance
Position: Deputy Chair
Commenced as Board Director July 2017
Member of the Quality & Safety Sub-Committee and the Board
Performance & Remuneration Sub-Committee
Board meetings attended (82%)

Susan Lloyd
Jayman Prestidge
Grad Dip CA, CPP,
BBus(Acc)

Chief Executive Officer
Property Development
Position: Board Director
Commenced as a Board Director July 2020
Member of the Audit & Finance Sub-Committee
Board meetings attended (100%)

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

BAppSci, GradDipEd,
MOrgLeadership,
FAICD, VIT

Corporate Leadership
Consultant,
Governance Adviser
and Secondary Teacher
Position: Board Director
Commenced as a Board Director July 2018
Member of the Quality & Safety Sub-committee
Board meetings attended (82%)
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Board of Directors: 2020 - 2021

Leanne Williams
BBus(Com)
GradDipCA GAICD

Sarah Lukies
MBA LLB BBUS

Chief Executive Officer
West Gippsland
Libraries
Position: Board Director
Commenced as a Board Director July 2018
Member of the Audit & Finance Sub-committee
Board meetings attended (73%)

Senior Legal &
Governance Counsel
Position: Board Director
Commenced as a Board Director July 2018
Member of Board Performance & Remuneration Sub-committee
Board meetings attended (91%)

Sara Brentnall
BAppSc(Physio)
PGDip (Musc) PGDip
(Manip) MScMed
(Pain Managt) GAICD

Divisional Manager,
Health Independence
Program & Ambulatory
Services, Austin Health
Position: Board Director
Commenced as Board Director May 2019
Member of the Quality & Safety Sub-committee
Board meetings attended (100%)

Farhat Firdous
BA(Soc) MA (Soc)
MA (Dev Studies)
PGDip (Counselling)
MAICD

Multicultural
Strategic Engagement
Coordinator
Position: Board Director
Commenced as Board Director July 2019
Member of the Audit & Finance Sub-committee
Board meetings attended (91%)

Joshua Chikuse
Adam Selent
BOptom PGCertOc Ther

Optometrist
Position: Board Director
Commenced as Board Director July 2019
Member of the Quality & Safety Sub-committee
Board meetings attended (91%)
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AGIA, ACIS, BEnv, MAppSc

Environmental
Management Sector
Position: Board Director
Commenced as Board Director July 2019
Member of the Audit & Finance Sub-Committee
Board meetings attended (100%)
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HIS

Casemix (Coding)

Medico Legal

Interns

HMO’s

Quality & Safety Manager

Director Clinical
Opera�ons

Contracted Services:
Pathology
Radiology
Pharmacy
Endoscopy

Diabetes Educa�on

Consul�ng Suites

ESAC
Preadmission

Infec�on
Preven�on &
control

Maternity Unit
Special Care
Nursery

Opera�ng Rooms
Day Surgery
CSSD

Surgical &
Paediatric Unit

Women, Children
& Surgical Services

Cooinda Lodge

Andrews House

Aged Care

Opera�ons Managers

District Nursing
Services
Hospital In The
Home
Pallia�ve care
Breast Care Support
HACC

Access & Flow
GRPCC

Oncology
Haemodialysis
Hospital
Coordinators

Emergency
Department
Short Stay Unit

Senior Medical
Staﬀ

Registrars

Medical Unit

Access & Demand

Clinical Leads

Chief Medical
Oﬃcer

Recep�on

Supply & Purchasing
Services

Salary Packaging

Contracts

Business Services

Finance

General Manager
Finance & Corporate
Services

Security
Car Parking

Informa�on &
Communica�on
Technology

Engineering Services

Food Services

Environmental
Services

General Manager
Facili�es
Management

Director Corporate
Services

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Rawson Community
Health Centre

Community Allied Health Service
Wellness & Reablement Consultant
Occupa�onal Therapy
Physiotherapy
Speech Pathology
Diete�cs
Counselling
Podiatry
Child Safe & Family Violence Project
Manager

Primary Community Health
CDAMS (Memory Clinic)
Con�nence
Diabetes Educa�on
Community Health Nurse
Young Mum Group
Counselling Services
First Call (Central Intake)
Health Promo�on Team
Aboriginal Hospital Liaison

Allied Health
Community Rehabilita�on
Occupa�onal Therapy
Physiotherapy
Speech Pathology
Diete�cs
Social Worker

Con�nuing & Complex Care
HARP/PAC/RIR/GEM & TCP

Director Allied &
Community Health

Learning &
Development
Nursing & Midwifery
Medical Educators

Consumer &
Volunteer
Engagement

Payroll

Work Health &
Wellbeing

Customer Services

Maintenance &
Capital Projects

Quality, OH&S
and CI

Transport

WLS
Administra�on

Produc�on

Manager
Warragul Linen
Service

& Culture

Director People

Human Resource
Recruitment
Employee Rela�ons
Reward &
Recogni�on

Public Rela�ons Fundraising & Dona�ons

Organisational Char t
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Photo: 2021 recorded high birth numbers from February
to June at WGHG. Proud parents Kelly Mether and
Les Stothard welcomed baby Bree.
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Our Achievements
DIRECTOR OF CLINICAL
OPERATIONS
The Director of Clinical Operations has an extensive role
responsible for all clinical units in the Hospital, two aged care
residential facilities and same day services such as dialysis,
day surgery and oncology and community-based nursing
services. We were delighted to welcome Trish to the role in
September 2020.

Key achievements during 2020-21 include:

Trish O’Kelly
MNurs, Postgrad Cert
CritCare, Grad Dip Proj Mgt

•	Established a Vaccination Clinic in Warragul offering
doses of Pfizer and AstraZeneca to health workers and
the local community.
•	Provided a drive through COVID-19 community screening
clinic over the Christmas and New Year period at short
notice following an outbreak of COVID-19 in Victoria.
•	Introduced a Capacity Escalation Process to optimise
access to emergency services and inpatients beds
through a timely, organised and graded approach to
surges in local and health service demand.
•	Established a Paediatric Rapid Review Clinic to provide
families with young children a space to be seen by
the Paediatric Team after a visit to the Emergency
Department.
•	Expanded our Palliative Care team with our first ever
Nurse Practitioner on boarded this year.
•	Joined Gen V - one of the world’s largest-ever birth and
parent cohort studies led by the Murdoch Children’s
Research Institute. The project will follow local babies and
their parents to help solve problems such as asthma, food
allergies, obesity and mental illness.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group
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Our Achievements
CHIEF MEDICAL
OFFICER

Report by
Dr Peter Trye
MBChB, DipObs, MPH,
MBA, FAFPHM, FRACMA,
FRACGP, GAICD

The Chief Medical Officer provides oversight of the junior and
senior medical staff, provides high level advice on medical
matters, and assists in fostering optimal working relationships
between medical staff and the Executive to achieve the
common goal of high quality patient care. In addition to the
Medical Workforce Unit the CMO also has responsibility for
Health Information Services and Casemix.

Key achievements during 2020 - 21 include:
For our medical teams, I am proud to say that we have
been able to maintain a quality service in the face of the
COVID-19 pandemic. For those training and at an early stage
of their career this once in a lifetime situation will lay a solid
foundation for the rest of their careers. Notable achievements
for the directorate this year include:

•

 orked closely with clinical areas via the Pandemic
W
Management Committee to re-orient services to respond
to COVID-19.

•

R estructured the Health Information Service and
appointed a Manager in anticipation of the new Electronic
Medical Record (EMR) system to be introduced in the
Emergency Department on 1st July, 2021.
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•

F urther developed services with in-house Emergency
Medicine training and expansion of GP Anaesthetics
programs in preparation for full utilisation of the third
operating theatre. Surgical capability has increased
through recruitment in clinical areas of high need
including colorectal surgery.

•

 elcomed back some of our previous trainee doctors in
W
Paediatrics as fully qualified Paediatricians to boost our
capability to meet the needs of the growing number of
young families in our community.

•

R ecorded the highest number of Hospital in the Home
(HITH) patients treated in their own home since 2017.
This follows a commitment by the General Medical and
the Emergency Medicine team to offer this whenever
safe to do so as a means of expanding capacity to serve
our community while maintaining the same number of
inpatient ward beds.

Annual Report 2020-21

DIRECTOR OF ALLIED AND
COMMUNITY HEALTH

Report by
Audra Fenton
RN, Grad Dip MN, Grad
Dip Bus Man., MNurs
(Mental health), ACHSM,
GAICD

The Director of Allied and Community Health has a pivotal role
in the delivery of community and hospital-based services for
West Gippsland, advising on issues related to primary, allied
and community health services. The role focusses on strategic
alliances and partnerships, and community-based networks
both within Baw Baw Shire and on a regional and State-wide
basis.

Key achievements during 2020-21 include:
•

S uccessful re-accreditation as a Child Safe organisation
by Child Wise.

•

A warded an Australian Healthcare Organisation of
Distinction award from the Huron Group for Community
Health leadership, client satisfaction and staff innovation.

•

 eveloped an organisation-wide Aboriginal Cultural
D
Safety Plan working with elders and the local Aboriginal
community.

•

 osted a Christmas Shop to support vulnerable children
H
and families with gifts for the festive season generously
supported by the Andrews Foundation.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

•

A chieved registration as a provider of disability programs
under National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS)
for Community Health, Dietetics and District Nursing
Services.

•

L ed a health promotion project to promote the wearing
of face masks to remote communities and distributed
400 packs of free face masks.
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Our Achievements
DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE
SERVICES

Report by
Justin Walsh
CPA BBus (Acct) BBus
(Bank&Fin)

The Director of Corporate Services oversees the business,
corporate and facilities operations of the Group that support
the delivery of clinical services. The position provides financial
and procurement leadership as the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) and Chief Procurement Officer (CPO) for the Group.

Key achievements during 2020-21 include:
In addition to the continued support of the business
throughout the year in response to the challenges of
COVID-19, key highlights for the directorate included:
•	Completed an energy audit at the main hospital site to
identify further energy efficient opportunities to improve
infrastructure and facilities, reduce carbon usage and
energy costs in line with the Department of Health
Building Authority’s Environmental Sustainability Strategy
2018-2023.
•	Secured a $1.679m interest free loan from the
Department of Treasury to extend our Energy
Performance Contract to undertake works identified from
the energy audit including de-commissioning of central
steam infrastructure to the main hospital, major plant
replacement, implementation of energy sub metering,
LED light replacements and additional solar power
installation. The loan will be re-paid through annual
energy savings achieved over five years.
•	Replaced a number of aged and inefficient heating
ventilation and air conditioning units across the hospital
including Cooinda Lodged residential aged care facility
funded by various Department of Health equipment
replacement programs.
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•	Improved security measures with additional swipe
access points installed and double swipe access to drug
safes.
•	Commenced a project to enhance our asset
management information systems, structures and
processes to improve reporting on asset condition and
inform asset planning decisions.
•	Strengthened cyber security strategies in collaboration
with Gippsland Health Alliance (GHA).

Photo: Launching the WGHG
Diversity Plan front from left
is Gippsland Pride Initiative
President Caitlin Grigsby
WGHG’s Rosemary Joiner,
WGHG Board Chair Christine
Holland.
Back from left:
WGHG CEO Dan Weeks,
Gippsland Rangers roller
derby player Kat Evans,
Lardner Park CEO
Craig Debnam,
roller derby player
Courtney Graham,
LGBTI elder
Sally Conning.
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DIRECTOR PEOPLE & CULTURE

Report by
Alan Hollensen
BEng(Hons) DipPracMgt

The Director of People and Culture aims to lead the
organisation in the areas of staff and leadership growth,
organisational culture development, employee and consumer
engagement, diversity and inclusion. The role also
provides expertise and support in the areas of learning and
development, performance management, employee relations,
policy development, human resources and workplace health
and wellbeing.

•

•

Key achievements during 2020-21 include:
•
•

Launched both our organisation-wide Diversity Plan
and Disability Plan, developed in consultation with
consumers, the community and key stakeholder groups.
Completed implementation of our Community
Participation Plan 2018 – 2021. This plan saw significant
work around consumer and community participation,

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

•

both at point of care and in the planning, design, delivery
and evaluation of our services. Work is underway to
develop our next plan.
Commenced a WGHG Gender Equality program with
a governance structure and working group to develop
a 2021-2025 action plan as outlined by the Gender
Equality Act 2020 and the Gender Equality Commission.
Established a Mask-Fit-Testing program through the
Learning and Development Unit for at risk staff to ensure
proper fit of respirators for protection from airborne
particles during the COVID-19 pandemic.
Increased support resources and training to promote
staff well-being throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. Key
leadership staff completed training to equip them with
tools to recognise signs and respond to team members
experiencing issues.

Annual Report 2020-21
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Our People

Photo: The annual WGHG Best Dressed Christmas
Department Competition excites and inspires
staff and patients. Operating Theatre nurse
Stacey Prokopiev surprised the judges with the
transformation of a workspace into a Santa
wonderland.
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Our People
In 2020-2021, WGHG employed a total of 1,366 people (790 full-time equivalent) across the organisation. The biggest category of
employees is Nursing Services.

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT STAFF
June Current Month FTE

Average Monthly FTE

Labour Category

2020

2021

2020

2021

Administration & Clerical

107.61

112.67

108.71

108.82

Ancillary Support (Allied Health)

58.68

59.56

59.16

58.38

Hospital Medical Officers

32.10

31.99

29.79

32.44

197.71

206.31

197.37

204.04

Medical Officers

5.58

5.43

5.27

5.73

Medical Support

25.10

25.48

26.17

27.30

Nursing Services

338.97

347.38

331.48

336.96

16.86

17.04

15.98

17.12

782.61

805.86

773.93

790.79

Hotel & Allied Services

Sessional Clinicians

Total

* FTE stands for full-time equivalent position. All employees of WGHG are correctly classified in the workforce data collections.

Employment and conduct principles
WGHG is committed to ensuring fairness and transparency in
all aspects of employment including recruitment, selection,
promotion, training and retention of employees.
Policies and procedures provide standards of employment
practices embedding principles of merit and equity, with
appropriate avenues for grievance and complaint processes.
Standards of conduct and behaviour are driven by WGHG’s
Values and Code of Conduct, with the aim to foster a
respectful and constructive way of working.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Photo: All aboard the Polar Express! The Paediatrics Unit
was one of the many departments that participated
in the annual WGHG Best Dressed Christmas
Department Competition. While COVID restrictions
reduced staff movement across the health service,
video footage of each department’s entry was
shared for all to see. CEO Dan Weeks and Board
Chair Christine Holland applauded staff for their
amazing efforts.
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Our People
Occupational Health & Safety
(OH&S)
West Gippsland Healthcare Group aims to provide a safe and
healthy environment for patients, residents, staff, contractors
and visitors.
We aim to manage all hazards and control any risks so far as
is reasonably practicable.
In 2020-21, as with the previous two years, our focus has be
on the prevention of occupational violence and aggression
(OVA) and the prevention of musculoskeletal injuries due to
hazardous manual handling and slips, trips and falls.

Staff OVA Training
Over 850 staff have now undertaken full-day OVA training.
In line with COVID guidelines the training has been modified
to involve no physical contact and to allow staff to maintain
distancing at all times.

Early return to work
For the third year running our focus on early return to work
has seen a significant reduction in our claims costs. Again

With initiatives put in place over the last three financial years,
the organisation is now trending below industry rate for our
performant, (0.744786% vs Industry Rate of 1.1353%).
We have also seen a substantial reduction in our WorkCover
premium figure of 40% over the previous financial year.

Employment Assistance Program
(EAP)
Staff are utilising the WGHG Employee Assistance Program
(EAP) which provides employees, volunteers and their
immediate families with access to free external counselling
and support with experienced and qualified professionals.
Of the staff using the EAP program 20% were for work-related
issues, 80% non-work related including COVID related issues.

OH&S Statistics

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

Number of reported hazards/incidents for the year per 100 full-time
equivalent staff members

28.2

28.9

28.2

Number of lost time standard claims for the year per 100 full-time
equivalent staff members

0.42

0.49

0.52

Average cost per claim for the year (including payments to date and
an estimate of outstanding claims costs as advised by WorkSafe)

$31,040

$42,719

$26,017

Occupational violence statistics

2020-21

WorkCover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE

0

Number of accepted WorkCover claims with lost time injury with an occupational violence cause per
1,000,000 hours worked

0

Number of occupational violence incidents reported

79

Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE

10.1

Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or condition

24%

Definitions:
Occupational violence - any incident where an employee is
abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances arising out of,
or in the course of their employment.
Incident – an event or circumstance that could have resulted
in, or did result in, harm to an employee. Incidents of all severity
rating must be included. Code Grey reporting is not included,
however, if an incident occurs during the course of a planned or
unplanned Code Grey, the incident must be included.
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the organisation has had a comparative number of claims to
the previous year, but due to engagement and pro-activeness
from department managers we have seen lost time hours
remain at approximately 36 hours per time standard time loss
claim.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Accepted WorkCover claims – Accepted WorkCover claims
that were lodged in 2020-21.
Lost time – is defined as greater than one day.
Injury, illness or condition – This includes all reported
harm as a result of the incident, regardless of whether the
employee required time off work or submitted a claim.
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Ser vice Awards
WGHG’s Annual General Meeting traditionally recognises
staff who have achieved significant employment milestones.
However with COVID-19 restrictions on the number of people
permitted to attend gatherings, WGHG held its AGM online for
the first time and could not present the awards in person to
staff at the AGM.
To ensure that recipients were duly recognised, Board
Directors and Executive offered to personally present staff
with their awards in their workplaces.

The annual staff Christmas thank you lunch and dinner
could not be held in the café in the usual way. Instead
Board Directors and Executive dressed in festive gear to
deliver boxed meals prepared by the Food Services team to
departments across the health service. Staff who chose to
have their awards presented also received their award by a
Board Director during the lunch/dinner delivery.
In 2020, 56 staff members achieved long service milestones
from 15 years to 40 years.

40 Years

25 Years

20 Years

15 Years

Alice Wells
Joan Keeble
Marie Smith
Mary Gleeson

Alison Glover
Glenda Tottenham
Jenny Tully
Julie Proctor
Lois Dorling
Michelle Green
Pamela Slabicki
Pauline Lintzen
Rosa Paris
Susan Vickery

Allison Bright
Bernadette McKenna
Debra Vandeburgt
Fleur Glover
Jodee Bethune
Judith Redman
Kerrie Wright
Lexie Mapleson
Lyn Wilkinson
Maria Attwell
Raelene McDonald
Suzanne Schena
Tamara Guy

Barbara Buckley
Jennifer Heslop
Jennifer Morrison
Susan Deakin
Meagan Jones
Sherie Small
Janine Smith
Renee Kersten
Robyn Ridley
Melissa Pinch
Daren Rumble
Rebecca Sinnett
Sharyn Norris
Chanea Wilkinson
Katrina Hendrikse
Sue O’Neill
Lynette Burrage
Caroline Edwards
Paula Portelli
Mara Wiemann

35 Years
Amanda Cropley
Claire Osterlund
Jadwiga Barczyk
Yvonne Rowe

30 Years
Diane Haysom
Jenine Bowering
Julie Hume
Sandra Bell
Suzanne Colby

Photo: WGHG Board Director Jayman Prestidge presents
a long service award to Susan Vickery. Susan was
one of 59 staff members and volunteers to achieve
employment milestones.
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Ser vice Awards
Life Governor Awards

Thank you to volunteers

Two Life Governorships were awarded to recognise the
contribution of long serving paediatrician Dr Charlie Hamilton
and former Director of Clinical Operations Kathy Kinrade who
retired from WGHG in December 2019.

While COVID-19 restrictions halted some volunteer programs,
WGHG was able to host the annual National Volunteers
luncheon in May with a thank you from Executive and the
WGHG Board. Some volunteer programs returned sooner than
others with the focus on welcoming people back in a way
that is safe for volunteers and safe for everyone. We thank all
volunteers who continue to support our heath service:

Volunteer Recognition of Service
Volunteers and Auxiliary members with 10 years or more of
volunteer service to WGHG are recognised under the award
category of Volunteer Recognition of Service Award.
Barbara Stoneman and Gay Mynard from the Trafalgar
Opportunity Shop and June Bright Palliative Care volunteer
received awards for long service.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Andrews House volunteers
Community Rehabilitation Centre Woodworkers
Consumer Representatives (including Community Voices)
Cooinda Lodge volunteers
Drouin Auxiliary Opportunity Shop
Hospital Concierge (wayfinding) team
Palliative Care Service volunteers
Rawson Auxiliary
Trafalgar & District Community Opportunity Shop

Other volunteer programs include support to hospital wards,
administration and more.
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Our Generous Communit y
Donations: July 2020 - June 2021
WGHG is most grateful for the generous support from the
community. During 2020-21, we received $702,226 through
donations and fundraising activities.
We acknowledge the support received through Trusts and
Bequests, in particular the ongoing generous support of The
Andrews Foundation, Pethard Tarax Charitable Trust, William
Joseph Payne Trust, Charles Haworth Trust Estate, as well as
estates of Geoffrey Bruce Russell, Phillip Ray Edwards, Allan
Pedersen, Edythe Helen Matchett and many others who chose
to donate to us privately.

$100,000 or above
Drouin Auxiliary Opportunity Shop
Estate of the late Phillip Ray Edwards

$50,000 - $99,999
Anonymous donation
Charles Haworth Trust Estate
Trafalgar & District Community Opp Shop

$20,000 - $49,999
Lions Club of Warragul
The Andrews Foundation
Treasure Your Chest - Girls Day Out
Vin Rowe Farm Machinery

$5,000 - $19,999
David Hilder
D Tomasetti
Estate of Mrs Edythe H Matchett
Hallora Hall Committee
Pharaohs Secret Angels
Robinhood Inn
Rotary Club of Drouin
Yarragon Lions Club

$1,000 – $4,999
A & G Kaiser
ARB Warragul
Arthur Jones
Bill Sherriff
Barbara Kingwill
Brenda Whitehead
Brylie Earwicker
Bunyip IGA supermarket
C B & L M Vaughan
Coffee Pod
DE & JL Fortune
Denise Campbell
Donna Gibson
Down to Earth Garden Supplies

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

E M Hine
Erica & District Health Centre Community Auxiliary
Helen Winter
Ian Brooks Barrister and Solicitor
J & A Hooper
Karawah Incorporated
Lardner Ladies Social Club
Leonard Makin
Lions Club of Willow Grove & District Inc.
Malcolm Heywood
Neerim District Lions Club
Pethard Tarax Charitable Trust
R and G Engelstad
R & F Knight
Rhonda Micah
Rotary Club of Warragul
Sally Hudson
Suzanne Midgley
The Grange Cafe
Trafalgar Lions Club
Warragul Bowling Club
Warragul Dine Out Group
Warragul Lioness Club

Under $1,000
We are grateful for all donations large and small. During
2020-21, WGHG received 347 donations under $1,000. When
combined, these donations assist us to purchase medical
equipment and patient comfort items.

Gifts in-kind
A special thankyou to the individuals and businesses who
support our health service with flowers, cards and other items
to support our staff, patients and aged care residents.

In Memoriam donations
We receive many in memoriam donations following the death
of a loved one, for which we are most appreciative.

How to donate:
• by phone 03 5623 0600 Mon-Friday 9am-5pm using a
credit card
• o n line at www.wghg.com.au, securely using a credit card
or PayPal
• b y cheque made payable to: West Gippsland Healthcare
Group and mailed to Public Relations Office, 41
Landsborough Street, Warragul
• in person to the Public Relations Manager at the main
hospital campus Ph: 03 5623 0600
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Our Generous Communit y
Fundraising and events
A challenging year marked by COVID restrictions disrupted
fundraising groups from running events including the annual
Charity Golf Event and community raffle. Despite this, many
groups worked in different way to raise money. A Girls Day
Out group raised $25,000, Pharaohs Secret Angels group
raised $9,000 and the Hallora Hall Committee raised $5,000
towards cancer care.

Clubs answer our call
We are grateful for the support of the many service clubs and
community groups across our region. This year, the Lions Club
of Warragul and Australian Lions donated $42,737, Yarragon
Lions Club donated $10.486, Rotary Club of Drouin and
Rotary International donated $7,030, Trafalgar Lions $3,095,
Rotary Warragul $2,800. Many more clubs made donations
and these are included on our donor page. This support
enabled the purchase of vital medical equipment during a very
challenging year.

Annual Equipment Appeal 2021
The Hospital’s Annual Equipment Appeal ran from May until
June 30 and raised $186,000 - double the amount raised
last year. As a result, vital medical equipment was purchased
including a new birthing bed, patient monitors, bladder
scanners, a dialysis treatment chair, recliner chairs, and
shower chairs. We thank all those who supported the Appeal.

Opportunity Shops record sales
Both the Drouin Auxiliary Opportunity Shop and Trafalgar
Opportunity Shop closed during COVID lock down periods
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but when they re-opened experienced record sales. Drouin
Opportunity Shop donated $156,000 for a new fetal monitoring
system for the Maternity Unit while Trafalgar Opportunity Shop
donated $45,000 towards emergency equipment and comfort
items for Andrews House. WGHG is grateful to all the volunteers
for their hard work and commitment.

Daffodil Bulb Fundraiser
Once again the community supported our 27th annual daffodil
bulb fundraiser which raised $23,100. The Blyth Bros farm
donates the bulbs and all money from sales goes to purchase
medical equipment and resources for Allied and Community
Health programs. Thank you to the local businesses who
volunteered to sell bulbs - Baw Baw Food Hub, Bunyip
IGA, The Coffee Pod, Down to Earth Garden Centre, Drouin
Auxiliary Opportunity Shop, Drouin Home Timber and
Hardware, The Grange Café, Town and Country Gallery,
Trafalgar Opportunity Shop.

Social Media connects supporters
The West Gippsland Hospital Supporters Facebook page
continues to provide a platform to connect with donors and to
recognise and promote partnerships and activities.
This year we extended our social media introducing a WGHG
LinkedIn page to broaden our connections with community,
businesses and career professionals.
Photo below: Hallora Hall Committee ran a street stall in
Warragul with home grown fruit, vegies, plants, jams, and
relishes donated by the Hallora community to raise funds
for cancer care.
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Our Per formance

Photo: WGHG’s Trevor Jeffrey and Harold Paul deliver
hundreds of daffodil bulbs to retailers for the
Hospital’s 27th annual daffodil fundraiser.
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Our Per formance
Par t A : Strategic priorities
For the 2020-21 financial year, there have been no individual deliverables that constitutes SoP Part A. Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, the Minister for Health provided all health services with the following SoP Part A Priorities to be focused on during the
pandemic.

32

HEALTH SERVICE DELIVERABLES

OUTCOMES

Maintain your robust COVID-19 readiness
and response, working with my department
to ensure we rapidly respond to outbreaks, if
and when they occur, which includes providing
testing for your community and staff, where
necessary and if required. This includes
preparing to participate in, and assist with,
the implementation of our COVID-19 vaccine
immunisation program roll-out, ensuring your
local community’s confidence in the program

Achieved - West Gippsland Healthcare Group (WGHG) has contributed
actively to a Regional response, working as part of the Gippsland COVID
Cluster/Health Service Partnership in collaboration with the Gippsland
Region Public Health Unit (GRPHU). A COVID Coordinator was
appointed to ensure the strategies were responsive to change. WGHG
worked in partnership with the Gippsland Primary Health Network
(GHPN) and the local Commonwealth Respiratory Clinic, providing
additional COVID-19 testing services as required, particularly during
outbreaks. Contingency plans have been established to manage peak
demand for testing. WGHG also sent COVID testing teams to assist
in other parts of Gippsland when required and seconded staff to the
GRPHU to assist the regional response. In partnership with GRPHU and
Baw Baw Shire Council, a COVID-19 vaccination centre was established
to provide access to the community and to essential service workers.

Engage with your community to address the
needs of patients, especially our vulnerable
Victorians whose care has been delayed due
to the pandemic and provide the necessary
“catch-up” care to support them to get back
on track.

Achieved - WGHG has engaged local Elders in devising culturally
appropriate resources to educate and encourage the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander community to look after their existing health conditions,
monitor for symptoms of COVID-19 and encourage vaccination. This work
is ongoing including further engagement with GP clinics.
- WGHG has worked to provide outreach to vulnerable communities,
people living in rural and remote populations, caravan parks and
disadvantaged areas. This included access to free masks and
information regarding COVID-19 and vaccination.
- WGHG participated in the government program to provide additional
elective surgery. Additional outpatient speciality clinics were
established. Increased counselling services were provided as demand
increased for Family Violence and Generalist services following COVID.
A Young Mums group that met face-to-face weekly has converted to
a hybrid model of service provision including zoom meetings, with
delivery of resources and activity sheets to families. Families have
also been encouraged to meet up in smaller groups to continue
their socialisation and support of each other within COVID-19 response
requirements. Allied Health maintenance groups have been adapted
to a telehealth model for more compromised consumers to avoid
de-conditioning. Consumers have been provided with home exercise
programs and given guidance via the virtual zoom platform. Additional
assessments were provided in the Community Rehabilitation Service for
Strength and Balance clients to avoid de-conditioning and a worsening
of their health condition.
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Par t A : Strategic priorities

HEALTH SERVICE DELIVERABLES

OUTCOMES

As providers of care, respond to the
recommendations of the Royal Commission into
Victoria’s Mental Health System and the Royal
Commission into Aged Care Quality and Safety.

Achieved - Recommendations from the Royal Commissions have
been reported to the Quality and Safety Committee. WGHG continues
to work with Latrobe Regional Hospital as the regional provider of
mental health. Community Health aged care has seen an increase in
clients using home care packages, reflecting recommendations from
the Aged Care Royal Commission on self-determination and autonomy
for older Australians. Aged Care governance structures have been relaunched and re-socialised within our aged care facilities with a focus
on consumer engagement. New recommendations are being developed
and embedded in our everyday practice.

Develop and foster your local health partner
relationships, which have been strengthened
during the pandemic response, to continue
delivering collaborative approaches to planning,
procurement and service delivery at scale.
This extends to prioritising innovative ways to
deliver health care through shared expertise
and workforce models, virtual care, cocommissioning services and surgical outpatient
reform to deliver improved patient care through
greater integration.

Achieved - WGHG participated in the Gippsland Partnership with
a regional approach to the Better at Home program and additional
elective surgery. The pandemic led to closer collaboration with local
aged care providers, including the establishment of multi-agency
teams to work together in responding to COVID-19. WGHG is now
supporting a number of providers with access to specialist support
and services, including infection control and a range of allied health
disciplines. WGHG facilitated the secondment of a senior nursing
operations manager to the role of Acting Director of Nursing at Neerim
District Health Service, strengthening the relationship between our
services and enhancing planning for future collaborations. Paediatric
Allied Health Shared Care models have been developed in partnership
with The Royal Children’s Hospital and Monash Children’s Hospital.
WGHG now has access to the Royal Women’s Hospital Women’s
Alcohol and Drug Service to support staff. WGHG partnered with Baw
Baw Shire Council in implementing the COVID-19 vaccine awareness
project.
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Our Per formance
Par t B: Per formance priorities
High quality and safe care
Key performance measure

Target

Result

Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia program

83 %

88 %

Percentage of healthcare workers immunised for influenza

90 %

96 %

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of positive patient
experience responses

95 %

No Surveys
conducted in
2020-2021

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of very positive responses to questions on
discharge care

75 %

No Surveys
conducted in
2020-2021

No outliers

Achieved

Rate of singleton term infants without birth anomalies with Apgar Score <7 at 5 minutes

≤1.4 %

2.6 %

Rate of severe fetal growth restriction (FGR) in singleton pregnancy undelivered by 40 weeks

≤28.6 %

20 %

Proportion of urgent maternity patients referred for obstetric care to a level 4, 5 or 6 maternity service
who were booked for a specialist clinic appointment within 30 days of accepted referral

100 %

94 %

Infection prevention and control

Patient experience

Healthcare associated infections (HAI's)
Rate of patients with surgical site infection

Maternity and newborn
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Par t B: Per formance priorities
Timely access to care
Key performance measure

Target

Result

Percentage of patients transferred from ambulance to emergency department within 40 minutes

90 %

95 %

Percentage of Triage Category 1 emergency patients seen immediately

100 %

100 %

Percentage of Triage Category 1 to 5 emergency patients seen within clinically recommended time

80 %

71 %

Percentage of emergency patients with a length of stay in the emergency department of less
than four hours

81 %

68 %

Number of patients with a length of stay in the emergency department greater than 24 hours

0

4

Percentage of urgency category 1 elective surgery patients admitted within 30 days

100 %

100 %

Percentage of urgency category 1, 2 and 3 elective surgery patients admitted within clinically
recommended time

94 %

86 %

Percentage of patients on the waiting list who have waited longer than clinically recommended time
for their respective triage category

5% or 15%
proportional
improvement
from prior year

Achieved

Number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list as at 30 June 2021

400

422

Number of hospital-initiated postponements per 100 scheduled elective surgery admissions

≤ 7 /100

8

Number of patients admitted from the elective surgery waiting list

2640

2484

Percentage of urgent patients referred by a GP or external specialist who attended a first
appointment within 30 days

100 %

98 %

Percentage of routine patients referred by GP or external specialist who attended a first
appointment within 365 days

90 %

98 %

Emergency care

Elective surgery

Specialist clinics
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Par t B: Per formance priorities
Effective financial management

36

Key performance measure

Target

Result

Operating result ($m)

-$2.0m

$0.0m

Average number of days to pay trade creditors

60 days

52 days

Average number of days to receive patient fee debtors

60 days

27 days

Public and Private WIES activity performance to target

100%

98.5%

Adjusted current asset ratio (ACAR)

0.7 or 3%
improvement
from health
service base
target

0.85

Actual number of days available cash, measured on the last day of each month.

14 days

Achieved

Variance between forecast and actual Net result from transactions (NRFT) for the current
financial year ending 30 June.

Variance ≤
$250,000

Not Achieved
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Par t C: Activit y and funding
2020-21 Activity Achievement
Acute Admitted
Acute WIES

10,655

WIES DVA

125

WIES TAC

14

Acute Non-Admitted
Home Enteral Nutrition

110

Specialist Clinics

19,911

Subacute & Non-Acute Admitted
Subacute WIES - GEM Public

92

Subacute WIES - Palliative Care Public

9

Subacute WIES - Palliative Care Private

0

Subacute Non-Admitted
Health Independence Program - Public

15,590

Aged Care
Residential Aged Care

30,277

HACC

4,830

Primary Health
Community Health / Primary Care Programs

6,488
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Financial Summar y

Photo: The Warragul Brass Band volunteered to play at the main
hospital entrance during December 2020 as a thank you to
healthcare staff for their work during the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Financial Summar y
Our ongoing response to COVID-19 headlined our focus for
the year and priorities over resource decisions. Our elective
surgery targets (numbers and WIES funding) were impacted at
various stages during the year as restrictions were placed on
elective surgery capacity levels in response to outbreaks.
We were again fortunate to receive COVID-19 reimbursement
funding from the Victorian Department of Health, totalling
$2.72m in 2020-21 plus additional financial sustainability
funding that allowed us to achieve a break even operating
result for the 2020-21 financial year. This was a very pleasing
outcome considering we started the year with a budgeted
annual operating loss of $5.4m. We also received funding to
address the deferred elective surgery activity impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic.
Total revenue from transactions for the year grew by 6.2%
to $133.9m. The majority of this growth related to increased
State Government operational revenue of $9.5m to $98.9m,
including COVID funding.

Cash reserves for the year, including tied funds and monies
held in trust, increased $6.7m to $19.8m. This included
contributed capital funding of $4.5m received in June 2021
for the construction of an eight bed day chemotherapy unit
(construction of which is expected to commence during 202122. Additional financial sustainability funding received in
the last quarter of the 2020-21 financial year helped ensure
available cash reserves were above the key performance
benchmark of 14 days available cash.
The Group’s liquidity ratio improved as a result of improved
cash performance, back at 0.68 (similar level recorded in
2018-19. Net assets increased $0.6m to $65.5m.
Outside of the ongoing pandemic and state of emergency,
there were no known events subsequent to balance date that
may have a significant effect on the operations of WGHG.

Total expenditure from transactions before depreciation
increased 6.7% to $131.5m. This included COVID related
expenditure of $3.1m, increased employee costs for the full
year operations of the Short Stay Unit (SSU) and continued
increases in radiology diagnostic costs with higher requests
for CT scans, including after hours.
The net result for the year after depreciation and other
economic flows was a loss of $5.6m, compared the $4.4m
net loss recorded in the previous 2019-20 financial year.
Depreciation for the current year increased 13.8% to $8.2m
and included full year depreciation for the new SSU and third
theatre builds.
In June 2021, management was required to undertake
a managerial revaluation of land due to increases in the
Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) land indices above 10% across
our land portfolio (weighted). This resulted in a $1.66m
increment to the carrying amount of land, thereby reducing
our comprehensive result for 2020-21 to a loss of $3.9m.
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Key Per formance Indicators

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

Total Target WIES

2017-18

9667

9546

9748

10176

9929

10451

10255

10523

10795

11000
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3000
2000
1000
0

10781

Five year WIES comparison

2016-17

Actual WIES

WIES stands for Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation.
The Victorian Government uses WIES as their activity based case mix funding policy for public hospitals.
Each hospital admission is assigned a WIES value based on the Diagnosis Related Group (DRG) and length of stay.
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Key Per formance Indicators
Five year financial comparison

Operating Result

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

-

(1,754)

(3,722)

660

1,214

Total Revenue

133,881

126,016

118,102

114,678

108,084

Total Expenditure

139,694

130,447

124,515

115,240

107,076

(5,813)

(4,431)

(6,413)

(562)

1,008

255

8

188

(104)

91

(5,558)

(4,423)

(6,225)

(666)

1,099

110,381

107,287

109,439

107,627

101,417

44,907

42,415

40,201

35,223

34,212

65,474

64,872

69,238

72,404

67,205

Net Result from Transaction
Total other Economic Flows

Net Result
Total Assets
Total Liabilities

Total Equity

Reconciliation between the Net result from transactions reported
in the model to the Operating result as agreed in the Statement
of Priorities
2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

-

(1,754)

(3,722)

660

1,214

3,255

5,118

4,676

5,349

6,094

-

-

-

-

470

COVID 19 State Supply Arrangements - Assets
received free of charge or for nil consideration
under the State Supply

633

100

-

-

-

State supply items consumed up to 30 June
2021

633

(100)

-

-

-

Assets received free of charge

-

-

-

185

5

Expenditure for capital purpose

(794)

(507)

(181)

(261)

(257)

(8,194)

(7,199)

(7,097)

(6,495)

(6,518)

(80)

(89)

(89)

-

-

(5,813)

(4,431)

(6,413)

(562)

1,008

Net Operating Result
Capital and specific items
Capital purpose income
Specific income

Depreciation and amortisation

Other non-operating expenses

Net result from transactions
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Repor ting requirements

Photo: Morning tea was served to aged care residents
after their first COVID-19 vaccination at Andrews
House and Cooinda Lodge. Pictured is Cooinda
Nurse Manager Lauren Mucic who assisted
the vaccination day at Andrews House serving
refreshments to residents including Del Knight.
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Asset Management
Asset Management Accountability
Framework (AMAF)
The following sections summarise WGHG assessment of
maturity against the requirements of the Asset Management
Accountability Framework (AMAF). The AMAF is a nonprescriptive, devolved accountability model of asset
management that requires compliance with 41 mandatory
requirements. These requirements can be found on the DTF
website (https://www.dtf.vic.gov.au/infrastructure-investment/
asset-management-accountability-framework).
The WGHG current maturity rating is ‘competence’, meaning
systems and processes are fully in place, consistently applied
and systematically meeting the AMAF requirement, including
a continuous improvement process to expand system
performance above AMAF minimum requirements.
WGHG continuously strives towards continous improvement
and has a target maturity rating of “optimising”. A
comprehensive plan is in place to expand system performance
to achieve the target maturity rating within the next two-three
years.

Leadership and Accountability
(requirements 1-19)
Within requirements 1-19, three have met the optimising
rating with the balance meeting the competence rating.

Planning (requirements 20-23)
Requirements 20-23 have met the competence rating.

Acquisition (requirements 24 and 25)
Requirements 24-25 have met the competence rating.

Operation (requirements 26-40)
Requirements 26-40 have met the competence rating.

Results:
Target

Overall

Disposal (requirement 41)
Requirement 41 has met the competence rating.

Legend
Status Scale
Not applicable N/A
Innocence 0
Awareness 1
Developing 2
Competence 3
Optimising 4
Unassessed U/A
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Environment Per formance Summar y 2020-2021
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS			
Total greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes CO2e)
Scope 1
Scope 2
Total

				

2021
3,694
3,323
7,017

2020
3,781
3,343
7,124

2019
3,932
3,428
7,359

Normalised greenhouse gas emissions
Emissions per unit of floor space (kgCO2e/m2)
Emissions per unit of separations (kgCO2e/separations)
Emissions per unit of bed-day

2021
273.27
400.95

2020
277.42
473.95

2019
291.72
557.49

(LOS+Aged Care Cooinda Lodge only) (kgCO2e/OBD)

147.76

155.89

152.23

STATIONARY ENERGY								
Total stationary energy purchased by energy type (GJ)
Electricity
Natural Gas
Total

2021
12,207
71,685
83,892

2020
11,798
72,595
84,393

2019
11,426
76,320
87,746

Electricity and gas consumption data is for the main hospital site only including the Warragul Linen Service.
Total energy consumption continues to decline, reducing 0.6% for the 2020-21 financial year. Gas consumption fell 1.3% with
the continued replacement of a number of gas fired plant with electricity powered units. Electricity consumption was 3.5% higher
which included the changeover of some gas fired plant to electricity and the full year effect of the new Short Stay Unit (SSU) and
third theatre builds. WGHG continues to achieve the annual energy savings under its seven year Energy Performance Contract which
commenced in May 2016.

Normalised stationary energy consumption
Energy per unit of floor space (GJ/m2)
Energy per unit of Separations (GJ/Separations)
Energy per unit of bed-day (LOS+Aged Care Cooinda only) (GJ/OBD)

2021
3.27
4.79
1.77

2020
3.29
5.61
1.85

2019
3.48
6.65
1.82

Floor space has increased 450m2 since 2019 with the construction of the new SSU and third theatre builds on site being completed.
Energy performance for 2020-21 relative to separations continues to improve. Consumption has decreased 14.6% despite
increased separations, largely due to the new short stay unit (SSU) activity.
Energy performance relative to bed days also improved, with extra SSU activity offsetting the continued reduced occupancy at
Cooinda Lodge.

WATER 				
			
Total water consumption by type (kL)
Potable Water
Total

2021

2020

2019

45,075
45,075

36,879
36,879

30,946
30,946

Water consumption data is main hospital site only excluding Warragul Linen Service. Water usage continues to increase, up
22% for the year. This increase is attributed to the full year effect of the additional three afternoon haemodialysis shifts per week
(commenced February 2020) plus continual steam losses due to the poor condition of our central steam piping infrastructure. Works
are underway to decommission the central steam infrastructure to the main hospital and will be finished mid 2022.
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Environment Per formance Summar y 2020-2021
Normalised water consumption (Potable + Class A)
Water per unit of floor space (kL/m2)
Water per unit of separations (kL/separations)
Water per unit of bed-day (LOS+Aged Care OBD) (kL/OBD)

2021
1.76
2.58
0.69

2020
1.44
2.45
0.58

2019
1.23
2.34
0.47

WASTE AND RECYCLING				
Waste (tonnes)
Total waste generated (clinical waste+general
waste+recycling waste)
Total waste to landfill generated (clinical waste+general waste)
Total waste to landfill per patient treated
((kg clinical waste+kg general waste)/PPT)
Recycling rate % (recycling / (general waste+recycling))

2021

2020

2019

295
229

271
208

250
212

2.11
24.8%

2.02
24.5%

2.07
20.9%

Total waste generated increased 9.1% during the year due to ongoing COVID-19 management and requirements around infection
control and PPE use. Clinical waste increased 85.8% whilst general waste increased 4.7%. Waste diverted from landfill remained
consistent at around 25% of total non-clinical waste. Our Environmental Sustainability Committee continues to oversee waste
consumption and patterns and has helped to drive culture changes in waste handling and management.

Paper (tonnes)
Total reams of paper*
Reams of paper per FTE
Greenhouse Gas Emissions per unit of FTE (kgCO2e/FTE)

2021
23
18
37

2020
n/a
n/a
n/a

2019
n/a
n/a
n/a

* Paper consumption data is available from October 2020 (part year) following the replacement of all printers and multi-function
devices in September 2020. Usage reporting is generated from the new papercut software management tool.
				
			

Normalisers (for information only)
Area M2
Aged Care OBD
Aged Care OBD Cooinda Lodge only
ED Departures
FTE
LOS
OBD
Separations
Per Patient Treated (OBD + ED Departures + separations)

2021
25,678
30,435
12,514
25,328
795
34,975
65,410
17,501
108,239

2020
25,678
32,651
14,646
24,345
774
31,051
63,702
15,030
103,077

2019
25,228
34,805
17,179
23,092
756
31,165
65,970
13,201
102,263

Definitions: ED = Emergency Department OBD = Overnight Bed days FTE = Full Time Equivalent
LOS = Length Of Stay PPT = Per Patient Treated Separations = an end of an episode of care for admitted patients
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Repor ting Requirements
Freedom of Information Act
Under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (the FOI Act) any
person can ask to see documents held by the West Gippsland
Healthcare Group.
Consumers wishing to access documents may contact the
Freedom of Information Officer at WGHG on 03 5623 0611.
The FOI Officer is the Manager, Health Information Services
and is authorized by the agency to process requests in
conjunction with the Chief Medical Officer. Guidance can be
provided by the FOI Officer on how to make a request, what
format it should be in and any costs associated. Information
is also available on the WGHG website: www.wghg.com.au
under Patient Information.
During the 2020-21 financial year, 114 requests for
information under the regulations of the FOI Act were
received. This year shows a significant increase due to a
change in capturing and processing of FOI applications.
Access was granted in full to 105 applicants. After
investigation, no documents existed for four requests. As of
30 June 2021, three requests are still being processed.
The majority of requests (98) were made by TAC, Worksafe,
solicitors and insurance companies on behalf of patients and
the remainder were directly requested by the general public.
Full Access.................................................................. 105
Partial Access.................................................................. 0
Denied ........................................................................... 0
Withdrawn ...................................................................... 2
No Documents................................................................. 4
Not yet finalised .............................................................. 3
Total............................................................................ 114

Local Jobs First Act
The Local Jobs First Policy (LJF) ensures government supports
Victorian businesses and workers by mandating that small
and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) are given full and fair
opportunity to compete for government contracts of all sizes
and types.
Under the Local Jobs First Act 2003, WGHG is required to
apply the Local Jobs First policy to all procurement activities
valued at $1million or more in regional Victoria.
During 2020-21, WGHG did not undertake any projects or
activity that required reporting under the Local Jobs First Act.
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Statement on National
Competitive Policy
It is Government policy that the costing policies of publicly
funded organisations should reflect any competitive advantage
available to the private sector. During 2020-2021 all
competitive neutrality requirements were met.

Building Act - Conformity &
Building Maintenance
The aged infrastructure, plant and equipment across WGHG
requires active support to ensure the facilities can meet
modern clinical requirements and support hospital operations.
Work continued throughout 2020-21 to improve the ageing
facilities and enhance the services provided at WGHG.
All renovations to existing buildings are assessed for
conformance to the Building Act 1993, including relevant
provisions of the National Construction Code. Where
necessary, an independent building inspector is engaged to
ensure compliance with the Building Act 1993.
All existing buildings complied with regulations in force at the
time of construction. There were no emergency orders nor
building orders to cease occupancy or to undertake urgent
works.
All public health sites are subject to Annual Essential Safety
Measures reporting and compliance statements and Fire
Safety Audit and Risk Assessments according to standards
as directed by the Department of Health. West Gippsland
Healthcare Group confirm certification as required under
The Department of Health, Capital Development Guidelines
- Series 7 Fire Risk Management, dated August 2013: Fire
Risk Management, specifically 7.6: Fire Risk Management for
Hospitals.

Energy Audit
In 2021 another energy audit was completed across WGHG
sites in order to identify sustainable and energy efficient
opportunities to improve infrastructure and facilities, reduce
our carbon footprint and align our goals to the Victorian Health
Building Authority’s Environmental Sustainability Strategy
2018 - 2023.
The key opportunities from the audit included major plant
replacement, implementation of energy sub metering, LED
light replacements and additional solar power installation.
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Repor ting Requirements
These recommendations will be delivered under an extension
of our current Energy Performance Contract during the 2021 2022 financial year.

• C
 ost in providing ICT services (including personnel &
facilities) across the agency, whether funded through a
central ICT budget or through other budget

Buildings

• Cost in providing ICT services to other organisations

The following major building projects were completed in
2020-2021 and are subject to conditions and inspections
under the Buildings Act 1993:

Total ICT expenditure is made up of Business as Usual (BAU)
and Non Business as usual (NBAU) expenditure:

• R epair to external brick façade on hospital building caused
by an accident involving a motor vehicle
• D
 esign and construction of a ground level plant room
shelter at the hospital site to support current and future
upgrades of plant and equipment
• R enovation of degraded space into a clinical immunisation
facility at the hospital site in response to COVID-19
Certificates of Final Inspection were issued as follows:
Repair to external brick façade 22nd October 2020.
Design and construction of a ground level plant room 9th
March 2021.

Maintenance
WGHG has a Preventative Maintenance program in place with
particular focus on ensuring critical assets are identified and
maintained to the standards required.
The WGHG Asset Management Framework supports the
identification of key building and condition assessments
that inform our building planning and building maintenance
programs.
Our Asset Management Strategy was updated in 2021 and
WGHG intends to submit applications for infrastructure grants
under the Department of Health funding rounds to undertake
identified major works and enable continued safe and
effective operations on the existing site.

Details of Information and
Communication Technology (ICT)
Expenditure

a. Business As Usual (BAU) expenditure includes all remaining
ICT expenditure other than Non-BAU ICT expenditure and
typically relates to ongoing activities to operate and maintain
the current ICT capability.
b. Non-Business As Usual (Non-BAU) expenditure is a subset
of ICT expenditure that relates to extending or enhancing
current ICT capabilities and are usually run as projects.
The total ICT expenditure incurred during 2020-21 is
$3.975m (excluding GST) with the details shown below. This
includes WGHG's annual membership contribution to core and
non-core services of the Gippsland Health ICT Alliance (GHA)
and partial implementation costs to date for the adoption of an
Electronic Medical Records system.

Business
As Usual
Non-BAU ICT expenditure
(BAU) ICT
expenditure

Total (excluding
GST)

Total =
Operational
expenditure
and Capital
Expenditure
(excluding
GST) (a) +
(b)

Operational
expenditure
(excluding
GST) (a)

Capital
expenditure
(excluding
GST) (b)

$3.024 million

$0.951
million

$0.663
million

$0.288
million

ICT expenditure represents West Gippsland Healthcare
Group's costs in providing business-enabling ICT services and
consists of the following cost elements:
• Operating and capital expenditure (including depreciation)
• ICT services – internally and externally sources
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Repor ting Requirements
Public Interest Disclosure Act
West Gippsland Healthcare Group complies with the Public
Interest Disclosure Act 2012 and has a Policy available to staff
on the WGHG intranet or via the Executive Office. The Chief
Executive Officer is the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator
for the purpose of the Public Interest Disclosure Act. There
were no complaints made under the Act against West
Gippsland Healthcare Group or its staff for 2020-21.

Safe Patient Care Act
West Gippsland Healthcare Group complies with the Safe
Patient Care (Nurse to Patient and Midwife to Patient Ratios)
Act. The legislation ensures the number of nurses and
midwives per patient is preserved and protected.
During 2020-21, WGHG had no matters to report in relation to
its obligations under section 40 of the Safe Patient Care Act
2015.

Carers Recognition Act
The Carers Recognition Act (2012) formally recognises
and values the role of carers and the importance of care
relationships in the community.
The Act defines a carer as someone who provides care to
another person and includes carers under the age of 18.
Carers can provide care for a person who has a disability, a
mental illness, an ongoing medical condition or is an older
person with care needs.
WGHG recognises the principles of the Act and has
incorporated these into a number of strategies including
the WGHG Disability Plan and Diversity Plan. Our strategic
objective of Person-Centred Care and Inclusiveness was
decided in response to consultation with community, including
people living with disability and carers. This helps us to
recognise, promote and value the role of carers in our local
community.

Gender Equality Act 2020
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is committed to
gender equality where everyone has the same rights and
opportunities regardless of gender. The Gender Equality Act
2020 commenced in March 2021. A WGHG Gender Equality
Working Party was established to consider strategies and
measures to improve gender equality in the workplace. A staff
consultation process has commenced and work is underway
on a Gender Equality Action Plan.
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Additional Information on Request
Consistent with FRD 22H (Section 5.19) the report of
operations confirms that details in respect of the items listed
below have been retained by West Gippsland Healthcare
Group and are available to the relevant Ministers, Members of
Parliament and the public on request (subject to the Freedom
of Information requirements, if applicable):

• Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly
completed by all relevant officers

• Details of shares held by senior officers as nominee or
held beneficially

• Details of publications produced by the entity about itself,
and how these can be obtained

• Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and
levies charged by the Health Service

• Details of any major external reviews carried out on the
Health Service

• Details of major research and development activities
undertaken by the Health Service that are not otherwise
covered either in the report of operations or in a document
that contains the financial statements and report of
operations

• Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary
of the objectives and outcomes of each visit

• Details of major promotional, public relations and
marketing activities undertaken by the Health Service to
develop community awareness of the Health Service and
its services

• Details of assessments and measures undertaken to
improve the occupational health and safety of employees

• General statement on industrial relations within the
Health Service and details of time lost through industrial
accidents and disputes, which is not otherwise detailed in
the report of operations

• A list of major committees sponsored by the Health
Service, the purposes of each committee and the extent to
which those purposes have been achieved

• Details of all consultancies and contractors including
consultants/contractors engaged, services provided, and
expenditure committed for each engagement

Annual Report 2020-21

Consultancies Disclosure
Details of consultancies under $10,000

Details of consultancies over $10,000

In 2020-21, there were two consultancies where the total
fees payable to the consultants were less than $10,000. The
total expenditure incurred during 2020-21 in relation to these
consultancies is $7,158 (excl. GST).

In 2020-21, there were 2 consultancies where the total fees
payable to the consultants were $10,000 or greater. The
total expenditure incurred during 2020-21 in relation to these
consultancies is $47,000 (excl. GST). Details of individual
consultancies can be viewed at https://wghg.com.au/
publications/.

Total
approved
project fee
(excluding
GST) $'000

Expenditure
2020-21
(excluding
GST)
$'000

Future
expenditure
(excluding
GST)
$'000

Consultant

Purpose of
Consultancy

Start End
date date

Zuuse Pty Ltd

Advice on system readiness
and approach to review current
asset information and workflow
structures and processes
as we strengthen our asset
maturity and compliance
against the Asset Management
Accountability Framework
(AMAF)

Sept 20 May 21 33

33

Nil

Dec 20

14

Nil

Technical project management
Schneider Electric
support for capital project
(Australia) Pty Ltd
delivery

May 21 15

Photo: 100 year old Brian Stevens gives the thumbs
up after his COVID-19 vaccine at Cooinda
Lodge with WGHG nurse vaccinator Jenny
and LRH nurse vaccinator Jedda.
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Photo: Staff came up with some creative approaches
during the festive period to brighten people’s day
including this S-Elf temperature check point.
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At testations
Responsible Bodies Declaration

Conflict of Interest Declaration

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994,
I am pleased to present the Report of Operations for West
Gippsland Healthcare Group for the year ending 30 June
2021.

I, Dan Weeks, certify that the West Gippsland Healthcare
Group has put in place appropriate internal controls
and processes to ensure that it has complied with the
requirements of hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance
reporting in health portfolio entities (Revised) and has
implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy consistent with the
minimum accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration
of private interest forms have been completed by all executive
staff within West Gippsland Healthcare and members of the
board, and all declared conflicts have been addressed and
are being managed. Conflict of interest is a standard agenda
item for declaration and documenting at each executive board
meeting.

Christine Holland
Board Chair
West Gippsland Healthcare Group
21 September, 2021

Financial Management Compliance
I, Christine Holland, on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify
that the West Gippsland Healthcare Group has no Material
Compliance Deficiency with respect to the applicable Standing
Directions under the Financial Management Act 1994 and
Instructions.

Christine Holland
Board Chair
West Gippsland Healthcare Group
21 September, 2021

Data Integrity Declaration
I, Dan Weeks, certify that the West Gippsland Healthcare
Group has put in place appropriate internal controls and
processes to ensure that reported data accurately reflects
actual performance. West Gippsland Healthcare Group has
critically reviewed these controls and processes during the
year.

Dan Weeks
Chief Executive Officer
West Gippsland Healthcare Group
21 September, 2021

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Dan Weeks
Chief Executive Officer
West Gippsland Healthcare Group
21 September, 2021

Integrity, Fraud and Corruption Declaration
I, Dan Weeks, certify that the West Gippsland Healthcare
Group has put in place appropriate internal controls and
processes to ensure that Integrity, fraud and corruption
risks have been reviewed and addressed at West Gippsland
Healthcare Group during the year.

Dan Weeks
Chief Executive Officer
West Gippsland Healthcare Group
21 September, 2021
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Financial index

for the financial year ended 30 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of West Gippsland Healthcare Group
Opinion

I have audited the financial report of West Gippsland Healthcare Group (the health service)
which comprises the:
•
•
•
•
•
•

balance sheet as at 30 June 2021
comprehensive operating statement for the year then ended
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
cash flow statement for the year then ended
notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
board directors', accountable officer's, and chief finance & accounting officer's
declaration.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the health service as at 30 June 2021 and their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of
Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting
Standards.
Basis for
Opinion

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.
My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are
independent of the health service in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Board’s
responsibilities
for the
financial
report

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial
Management Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary
to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.
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Auditor’s
responsibilities
for the audit
of the financial
report

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:
•

•

•
•

•

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the health service’s internal control
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board
conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the health service’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the health service to cease to continue as a going concern.
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that I identify during my audit.

MELBOURNE
13 October 2021

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Dominika Ryan
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Comprehensive Operating Statement
as
30 June
2021
Westat
Gippsland
Healthcare
Group

Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2021

Revenue and income from transactions
Operating activities
Non-operating activities
Total revenue and income from transactions
Expenses from transactions
Employee expenses
Supplies and consumables
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Other administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Other non-operating expenses
Total Expenses from transactions

Note

133,780
101
133,881

125,723
293
126,016

3.1
3.1
3.1
3.1
3.1
3.1
3.1

(101,740)
(15,538)
(43)
(8,194)
(7,194)
(6,905)
(80)
(139,694)

(96,260)
(13,761)
(91)
(7,199)
(6,676)
(6,371)
(89)
(130,447)

(5,813)

(4,431)

(19)
23
251
255

52
10
(54)
8

(5,558)

(4,423)

3.4
3.4
3.4

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Changes in property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus

2020
$'000

2.1
2.1

Net result from transactions - net operating balance
Other economic flows included in net result
Net gain/(loss) on sale of non-financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
Other gain/(loss) from other economic flows
Total other economic flows included in net result

2021
$'000

4.2(b)

1,660

-

Total other comprehensive income

1,660

-

Comprehensive result for the year

(3,898)

(4,423)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Comprehensive Operating Statement
as
30 June
2021Group
Westat
Gippsland
Healthcare

Comprehensive Operating Statement
As at 30 June 2021

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and contract assets
Inventories
Investments and other financial assets
Prepaid expenses and Other Assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Receivables and contract assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Note

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

6.2
5.1
4.4
4.1

19,806
3,212
240
3,714
836
27,808

13,048
3,237
273
5,203
636
22,397

5.1
4.2 (a)

1,077
81,496
82,573

1,086
83,804
84,890

110,381

107,287

Total assets
Current liabilities
Payables and contract liabilities
Borrowings
Employee benefits
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

5.2
6.1
3.2
5.3

8,990
891
20,291
10,581
40,753

7,523
2,006
17,823
10,063
37,415

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Employee benefits
Total non-current liabilities

6.1
3.2

773
3,381
4,154

1,409
3,591
5,000

Total liabilities

44,907

42,415

Net assets

65,474

64,872

58,370
37,079
(29,975)
65,474

56,710
32,579
(24,417)
64,872

Equity
Property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus
Contributed capital
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Total equity

4.2(f)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equit y
West
West
Gippsland
Gippsland
Healthcare
Healthcare
Group
Group
for
the financial
year ended
Statement
Statement
of Changes
of Changes
in Equity
in Equity
For For
the the
Financial
Financial
YearYear
Ended
Ended
30 June
30 June
2021
2021

30 June 2021

Property,
Property,
Plant Plant
and and
Accumulated
Accumulated
Equipment
Equipment
Revaluation
Surplus
Contributed
Contributed
Capital
CapitalSurplus/(Deficits)
Surplus/(Deficits)
Revaluation
Surplus
Note Note

Balance
Balance
at 30at
June
30 June
20192019
Net result
Net result
for the
foryear
the year
Contributed
Contributed
Capital
Capital
Balance
Balance
at 30at
June
30 June
20202020
Net result
Net result
for the
foryear
the year
Contributed
Contributed
Capital
Capital
OtherOther
comprehensive
comprehensive
income
income
for the
foryear
the year
Balance
Balance
at 30at
June
30 June
20212021
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$'000$'000

56,710
56,710
56,710
56,710
1,6601,660
58,370
58,370

$'000$'000

32,522
32,522
57 57
32,579
32,579
4,5004,500
37,079
37,079

$'000$'000

(19,994)
(19,994)
(4,423)
(4,423)
(24,417)
(24,417)
(5,558)
(5,558)
(29,975)
(29,975)

Total Total
$'000$'000

69,238
69,238
(4,423)
(4,423)
57 57
64,872
64,872
(5,558)
(5,558)
4,5004,500
1,6601,660
65,474
65,474
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Cash Flow Statements
Westthe
Gippsland
Healthcare
Groupended 30 June 2021
for
financial
year
Cash Flow Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2021

Cash Flows from operating activities
Operating grants from government
Capital grants from government - State
Patient fees received
Private practice fees received
GST received from ATO
Interest and investment income received
Other receipts
Total receipts

Note

Employee expenses paid
Payments for supplies and consumables
Payments for medical indemnity insurance
Payments for repairs and maintenance
Finance Costs
Cash outflow for leases
Payment for share of rural health alliance
Payments for non salary labour costs
Other payments
Total payments
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

8.1

Cash Flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Capital donations and bequests received
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of investments
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Receipt of accommodation deposits
Repayment of accommodation deposits
Payment for leasing assets
Receipt of Capital Contribution
Net cash flows from /(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

6.2

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

105,859
2,281
3,340
707
1,289
147
19,789
133,411

96,741
4,107
2,247
700
1,930
328
18,111
124,164

(90,194)
(15,538)
(2,110)
(2,012)
(22)
(248)
(1,384)
(8,194)
(8,006)
(127,709)

(85,737)
(13,761)
(2,063)
(2,209)
(32)
(218)
(1,160)
(7,671)
(9,750)
(122,600)

5,702

1,564

(4,021)
621
92
1,500
(1,808)

(6,526)
1,071
157
(5,298)

(1,858)
4,280
(3,844)
(214)
4,500

1,230
(629)
2,914
(2,498)
(29)
57

2,864

1,045

6,758
13,048
19,806

(2,689)
15,737
13,048

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2021

Notes to the Financial Sta

West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 J

Note 1: Basis of Preparation
Structure
1.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements
1.2 Impact of COVID-19 pandemic
1.3 Abbreviations and terminology used in the financial statements
1.4 Principles of consolidation
1.5 Joint arrangements
1.6 Key accounting estimates and judgements
1.7 Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
1.8 Goods and Services Tax (GST)
1.9 Reporting entity
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Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements
West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021
These financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the year ended 30 June
2021. The report provides users with information about West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s stewardship of the resources entrusted to it.
This section explains the basis of preparing the financial statements and identifies the key accounting estimates and judgements.

Note 1.1: Basis of preparation of the financial statements
These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994 and
applicable Australian Accounting Standards, which include interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). They are presented in
a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.
The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF), and
relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Assistant Treasurer.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is a not-for-profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs applicable to a "not-for-profit" health service
under the Australian Accounting Standards.
Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable
information about transactions, events and conditions. Apart from the changes in accounting policies, standards and interpretations as noted below, material
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those adopted in the previous period.
The West Gippsland Healthcare Group operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital Funds. The
West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s Capital and Specific Purpose Funds include unspent donations and receipts from fundraising activities conducted solely in
respect of these funds.
The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where
applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis (refer to Note 8.8 Economic Dependency).
The financial statements are in Australian dollars.
The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars. Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and
sum of components are due to rounding.
The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of West Gippsland Healthcare Group and its controlled entities on 21st September
2021.

Note 1.2 Impact of COVID-19 pandemic
In March 2020 a state of emergency was declared in Victoria due to the global coronavirus pandemic, known as COVID-19. Since this date, to contain the
spread of COVID-19 and prioritise the health and safety of our community, West Gippsland Healthcare Group was required to comply with various directions
announced by the Commonwealth and State Governments, which in turn, has continued to impact the way in which West Gippsland Healthcare Group
operates.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group introduced a range of measures in both the prior and current year, including:
- establishing a Pandemic Management Committee to oversee WGHG’s management and response to COVID
- introducing restrictions on non-essential visitors
- greater utilisation of telehealth services
- implementing reduced visitor hours
- establishing screening requirements for visitors, contractors and staff
- complying with Victoria’s Chief Health Officer public health directions
- deferring elective surgery and reducing activity
- performing COVID-19 testing
- administering COVID-19 vaccinations
- implementing work from home arrangements where appropriate.
As restrictions eased towards the end of the financial year West Gippsland Healthcare Group has revised some measures where appropriate and was able to
provide catch up elective surgery blitz for previously deferred elective patients.
Further information on the impacts of the pandemic are disclosed at:
-

Note 2: Funding delivery of our services
Note 3: The cost of delivering services
Note 4: Key assets to support service delivery
Note 5: Other Assets and Liabilities
Note 6: How we finance our operations
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Notes to the Financial Statements
West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Note 1.3 Abbreviations and terminology used in the financial statements
The following table sets out the common abbreviations used throughout the financial statements:

Reference
AASB
AASs
DH
DTF
FMA
FRD
SD
VAGO
WGHG
WIES

Title

Australian Accounting Standards Board
Australian Accounting Standards, which include Interpretations
Department of Health
Department of Treasury and Finance
Financial Management Act 1994
Financial Reporting Direction
Standing Direction
Victorian Auditor General’s Office
West Gippsland Healthcare Group
Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation

Note 1.4 Principles of consolidation
The financial statements include the assets and liabilities of West Gippsland Healthcare Group and its controlled entities as a whole as at the end of the
financial year and the consolidated results and cash flows for the year.
Transactions between segments within West Gippsland Healthcare Group have been eliminated to reflect the extent of West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s
operations as a group.

Note 1.5 Joint arrangements
Interests in joint arrangements are accounted for by recognising in West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s financial statements, its share of assets and liabilities
and any revenue and expenses of such joint arrangements.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group has the following joint arrangements:
- Gippsland Health Alliance - Joint Operation
Details of the joint arrangements are set out in Note 8.6.

Note 1.6 Key accounting estimates and judgements
Management make estimates and judgements when preparing the financial statements.
These estimates and judgements are based on historical knowledge and best available current information and assume any reasonable expectation of future
events. Actual results may differ.
Revisions to key estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are affected by the revision.
The accounting policies and significant management judgements and estimates used, and any changes thereto, are identified at the beginning of each section
where applicable and are disclosed in further detail throughout the accounting policies.

Note 1.7 Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
An assessment of accounting standards and interpretations issued by the AASB that are not yet mandatorily applicable to West Gippsland Healthcare Group
and their potential impact when adopted in future periods is outlined below:

Standard

Adoption Date

Impact

AASB 17: Insurance
Contracts

Reporting periods on or after 1 January 2023

Adoption of this standard is not
expected to have a material impact.

AASB 2020-1:
Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards –
Reporting periods on or after 1 January 2022.
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-Current

Adoption of this standard is not
expected to have a material impact.

AASB 2020-3:
Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards –
Reporting periods on or after 1 January 2022.
Annual Improvements
2018-2020 and Other
Amendments

Adoption of this standard is not
expected to have a material impact.

AASB 2020-8:
Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards –
Reporting periods on or after 1 January 2021.
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform – Phase 2

Adoption of this standard is not
expected to have a material impact.

There are no other accounting standards and interpretations issued by the AASB that are not yet mandatorily applicable to West Gippsland Healthcare Group
in future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Note 1.8 Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
(ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables in the Balance Sheet are stated inclusive of the amount of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is
included with other receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet.
Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis, except for the GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
which are recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

Note 1.9 Reporting Entity

The financial statements include all the controlled activities of West Gippsland Healthcare Group.
Its principal address is:
41 Landsborough Street
Warragul, Victoria, 3820
A description of the nature of West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations, which does not
form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Note 2: Funding delivery of our services
West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s overall objective is to provide quality health service that meets the changing needs of individuals and
the community. West Gippsland Healthcare Group is predominantly funded by grant funding for the provision of outputs. West Gippsland
Healthcare Group also receives income from the supply of services.

Structure
2.1 Revenue and income from transactions
2.2 Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
2.3 Other income

Telling the COVID-19 story
Revenue recognised to fund the delivery of our services increased during the financial year which was partially attributable to the COVID-19
pandemic and its impact on our economy and the health of our community.
Activity Based Funding decreased as the level of activity agreed in the Statement of Priorities could not be delivered due to reductions in the
number of patients being treated at various times throughout the financial year.
This was offset by funding provided by the Department of Health to compensate for reductions in revenue and to cover certain direct and
indirect COVID-19 related costs.
Additional revenue was received to fund:
- COVID-19 grants to fund preventative iniativies and capital relating to those iniatives to keep our patients, staff and the public safe.
- State repurpose grants to fund services negatively impacted the pandemic.
- Sustainability funding to help maintain business as usual service levels.
- Additional elective surgery catchup funding targeted at previously cancelled surgery to help ensure patients get the surgery they need in a
timely manner.
- Better at home funding for delivery of more healthcare within patients' homes where appropriate and preferred by the patient, through
use of home-delivered and virtual care.

Key judgements and estimates
This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

Key judgements and
estimates

Identifying performance
obligations

Description
West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgment when reviewing the terms and conditions of
funding agreements and contracts to determine whether they contain sufficiently specific and enforceable
performance obligations.
If this criteria is met, the contract/funding agreement is treated as a contract with a customer, requiring
West Gippsland Healthcare Group to recognise revenue as or when the health service transfers promised
goods or services to customers.
If this criteria is not met, funding is recognised immediately in the net result from operations.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgement to determine when a performance
Determining timing of revenue
obligation has been satisfied and the transaction price that is to be allocated to each performance
recognition
obligation. A performance obligation is either satisfied at a point in time or over time.
Determining time of capital
grant income recognition
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgement to determine when its obligation to
construct an asset is satisfied. Costs incurred is used to measure the health service’s progress as this is
deemed to be the most accurate reflection of the stage of completion.
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Note 2.1: Revenue and Income From Transactions

Operating activities
Revenue from contracts with customers
Government grants (State) - Operating
Government grants (Commonwealth) - Operating
Patient and resident fees
Private practice fees
Commercial activities 1
Total revenue from contracts with customers

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

63,952
2,438
3,236
33
14,325
83,984

60,279
2,402
3,361
22
13,667
79,731

34,959
6,030
2,281
621
633
5,272
49,796

29,081
6,644
4,107
1,071
100
4,989
45,992

133,780

125,723

Non-operating activities
Income from other sources
Other interest
Total other sources of income

101
101

293
293

Total income from non-operating activities

101

293

133,881

126,016

Other sources of income
Government grants (State) - Operating
Government grants (Commonwealth) - Operating
Government grants (State) - Capital
Other capital purpose income
Assets received free of charge or for nominal consideration
Other revenue from operating activities (including non-capital donations)
Total other sources of income
Total revenue and income from operating activities

Total revenue and income from transactions

1. Commercial activities represent business activities which West Gippsland Healthcare Group enter into to support their operations.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Annual Report 2020-21

67

Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements
West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Note 2: Revenue and Income From Transactions (cont'd)
How we recognise revenue and income from transactions
Government operating grants
To recognise revenue, West Gippsland Healthcare Group assesses whether there is a contract that is enforceable and has sufficiently specific
performance obligations in accordance with AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
When both these conditions are satisfied, the health service:
 Identifies each performance obligation relating to the revenue
 recognises a contract liability for its obligations under the agreement
 recognises revenue as it satisfied its performance obligations, at the time or over time when services are rendered.
Where the contract is not enforceable and/or does not have sufficiently specific performance obligations, in accordance with AASB 1058 Income for not-for-profit entities , the health service:
 recognises the asset received in accordance with the recognition requirements of other applicable Accounting Standards (for example,
AASB 9, AASB 16, AASB 116 and AASB 138)
 recognises related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liabilities, financial instruments, provisions, revenue or contract
liabilities from a contract with a customer), and
 recognises income immediately in profit or loss as the difference between the initial carrying amount of the asset and the related amount.
The types of government grants recognised under AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers includes:

Performance obligation

Government grant
Activity Based Funding (ABF)
paid as Weighted Inlier
Equivalent Separation (WIES)
casemix

The performance obligations for ABF are the number and mix of patients admitted to hospital (defined as
‘casemix’) in accordance with the levels of activity agreed to, with the Department of Health in the annual
Statement of Priorities.
Revenue is recognised at a point in time, which is when a patient is discharged, in accordance with the WIES
activity when an episode of care for an admitted patient is completed.
WIES activity is a cost weight that is adjusted for time spent in hospital, and represents a relative measure of
resource use for each episode of care in a diagnosis related group.

Capital grants
Where West Gippsland Healthcare Group receives a capital grant, it recognises a liability for the excess of the initial carrying amount of the
financial asset received over any related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liabilities, financial instruments, provisions, revenue
or contract liabilities arising from a contract with a customer) recognised under other Australian Accounting Standards.
Income is recognised in accordance with the conditions of funding and milestone events that trigger progress payments.

Patient and resident fees

Patient and resident fees are charges that can be levied on patients for some services they receive. Patient and resident fees are recognised
at a point in time when the performance obligation, the provision of services, is satisfied, except where the patient and resident fees relate to
accommodation charges. Accommodation charges are calculated daily and are recognised over time, to reflect the period accommodation is
provided.

Private practice fees
Private practice fees include recoupments from various private practice organisations for the use of hospital facilities. Private practice fees
are recognised over time as the performance obligation, the provision of facilities, is provided to customers.

Commercial activities

Revenue from commercial activities includes items such as Laundry, Cafeteria and property letting. Commercial activity revenue is recognised
at a point in time, upon provision of the goods or service to the customer.
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Note 2.2 Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
2021
$'000
688
18
615

1,158
100

1,321

1,258

Cash donations and gifts
Plant and equipment
Personal protective equipment
Total fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration

2020
$'000

How we recognise the fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
Donations and bequests
Donations and bequests are generally recognised as income upon receipt (which is when West Gippsland Healthcare Group usually obtained control
of the asset) as they do not contain sufficiently specific and enforceable performance obligations. Where sufficiently specific and enforceable
performance obligations exist, revenue is recorded as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Personal protective equipment
In order to meet the State of Victoria’s health system supply needs during the COVID-19 pandemic, the purchasing of essential personal protective
equipment (PPE) and other essential plant and equipment was centralised.
Generally, the State Supply Arrangement stipulates that Health Purchasing Victoria (trading as HealthShare Victoria) sources, secures and agrees
terms for the purchase of PPE. The purchases are funded by the Department of Health, while Monash Health takes delivery and distributes an
allocation of the products to health services. West Gippsland Healthcare Group received these resources free of charge and recognised them as
income.

Contributions

West Gippsland Healthcare Group may receive assets for nil or nominal consideration to further its objectives. The assets are recognised at their fair
value when West Gippsland Healthcare Group obtains control over the asset, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the
use of the contributions.
On initial recognition of the asset, West Gippsland Healthcare Group recognises related amounts being contributions by owners, lease liabilities,
financial instruments, provisions and revenue or contract liabilities arising from a contract with a customer.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group recognises income immediately in the profit or loss as the difference between the initial fair value of the asset and
the related amounts.
The exception to this policy is when an asset is received from another government agency or department as a consequence of a restructuring of
administrative arrangements, in which case the asset will be recognised at its carrying value in the financial statements of West Gippsland Healthcare
Group as a capital contribution transfer.

Voluntary Services
Contributions by volunteers, in the form of services, are only recognised when fair value can be reliably measured, and the services would have been
purchased if they had not been donated. West Gippsland Healthcare Group has considered the services provided by volunteers and has determined
the value of volunteer services cannot be readily determined and therefore it has not recorded any income related to volunteer services.

Non-cash contributions from the Department of Health
The Department of Health makes some payments on behalf of West Gippsland Healthcare Group as follows:

Supplier

Description

Victorian Managed Insurance Authority

The Department of Health purchases non-medical indemnity
insurance for West Gippsland Healthcare Group which is paid
directly to the Victorian Managed Insurance Authority. To record
this contribution, such payments are recognised as income with a
matching expense in the net result from transactions.

Department of Health

Long Service Leave (LSL) revenue is recognised upon finalisation
of movements in LSL liability in line with the long service leave
funding arrangements set out in the relevant Department of
Health Hospital Circular.
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Note 2.3 Other income
2021
$'000
Interest
Total other income

2020
$'000
101
101

293
293

How we recognise other income
Interest Income
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that considers the effective yield of the financial asset, which
allocates interest over the relevant period.
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Note 3: The cost of delivering our services
This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by the health service in delivering services and outputs. In Section 2, the funds
that enable the provision of services were disclosed and in this note the cost associated with provision of services are recorded.

Structure
3.1 Expenses from transactions
3.2 Employee benefits in the balance sheet
3.3 Superannuation
3.4 Other economic flows

Telling the COVID-19 story
Expenses incurred to deliver our services increased during the financial year which was partially attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Additional costs were incurred to deliver the following additional services:
- establish facilities within West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the treatment of suspected and admitted COVID patients resulting in an
increase in employee costs, additional equipment purchases and allocation of resources.
- implement COVID safe practices throughout West Gippsland Healthcare Group including increased cleaning and use of personal
protective equipment provided as resources free of charge.
- assist with COVID-19 case management, contact tracing and outbreak management contributing to an increase in employee costs.
- establish vaccination clinics to administer vaccines to staff and the community resulting in an increase in employee costs, additional
equipment and consumable costs.

Key judgements and estimates
This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

Key judgements and
estimates

Description
West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgment when measuring and classifying its
employee benefit liabilities.

Measuring and classifying
employee benefit liabilities

Employee benefit liabilities are classified as a current liability if West Gippsland Healthcare Group does
not have an unconditional right to defer payment beyond 12 months. Annual leave, accrued days off
and long service leave entitlements (for staff who have exceeded the minimum vesting period) fall into
this category.
Employee benefit liabilities are classified as a non-current liability if West Gippsland Healthcare Group
has a conditional right to defer payment beyond 12 months. Long service leave entitlements (for staff
who have not yet exceeded the minimum vesting period) fall into this category.
The health service also applies judgement to determine when it expects its employee entitlements to
be paid. With reference to historical data, if the health service does not expect entitlements to be paid
within 12 months, the entitlement is measured at its present value. All other entitlements are
measured at their nominal value.
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Notes
to the
toFinancial
the Financial
Statements
Statements
WestWest
Gippsland
Gippsland
Healthcare
Healthcare
Group
Group
for the
forfinancial
the financial
year year
ended
ended
30 June
30 June
20212021

NoteNote
3.1 Expenses
3.1 Expenses
fromfrom
transactions
transactions
20212021
$'000$'000
75,532
75,532
16,744
16,744
4,8404,840
3,3553,355
1,2691,269
101,740
101,740

20202020
$'000$'000
71,313
71,313
15,579
15,579
4,6244,624
3,1163,116
1,6281,628
96,260
96,260

959 959
4,1244,124
5,3545,354
5,1015,101
15,538
15,538

1,1511,151
3,3533,353
4,2864,286
4,9714,971
13,761
13,761

43 43
43 43

91 91
91 91

Other
Other
administrative
administrative
expenses
expenses
TotalTotal
otherother
administrative
administrative
expenses
expenses

7,1947,194
7,1947,194

6,6766,676
6,6766,676

Fuel,Fuel,
light,light,
power
power
and water
and water
Repairs
Repairs
and maintenance
and maintenance
Maintenance
Maintenance
contracts
contracts
Medical
Medical
indemnity
indemnity
insurance
insurance
Expenses
Expenses
related
related
to leases
to leases
of low
of value
low value
assets
assets
Expenditure
Expenditure
for capital
for capital
purposes
purposes
TotalTotal
otherother
operating
operating
expenses
expenses

2,0902,090
1,1081,108
603 603
2,1102,110
200 200
794 794
6,9056,905

2,0932,093
1,1921,192
367 367
2,0592,059
153 153
507 507
6,3716,371

131,420
131,420

123,159
123,159

8,1948,194
8,1948,194

7,1997,199
7,1997,199

80 80
80 80

89 89
89 89

8,2748,274

7,2887,288

139,694
139,694

130,447
130,447

Salaries
Salaries
and wages
and wages
On-costs
On-costs
Agency
Agency
expenses
expenses
Fee for
Feeservice
for service
medical
medical
officer
officer
expenses
expenses
Workcover
Workcover
premium
premium
TotalTotal
employee
employee
expenses
expenses

NoteNote

DrugDrug
supplies
supplies
Medical
Medical
and surgical
and surgical
supplies
supplies
(including
(including
Prostheses)
Prostheses)
Diagnostic
Diagnostic
and radiology
and radiology
supplies
supplies
Other
Other
supplies
supplies
and consumables
and consumables
TotalTotal
supplies
supplies
and consumables
and consumables
Finance
Finance
costscosts
TotalTotal
finance
finance
costscosts

TotalTotal
operating
operating
expense
expense
Depreciation
Depreciation
and amortisation
and amortisation
TotalTotal
depreciation
depreciation
and amortisation
and amortisation
Bad and
Bad doubtful
and doubtful
debtdebt
expense
expense
TotalTotal
otherother
non-operating
non-operating
expenses
expenses
TotalTotal
non-operating
non-operating
expense
expense
TotalTotal
expenses
expenses
fromfrom
transactions
transactions
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Note 3.1 Expenses from transactions (cont'd)
How we recognise expenses from transactions
Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Employee expenses

Employee expenses include:
 Salaries and wages (including fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements, termination payments)
 On-costs
 Agency expenses
 Fee for service medical officer expenses
 Work cover premiums.

Supplies and consumables
Supplies and consumable costs are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying
amounts of any inventories held for distribution are expensed when distributed.

Finance costs
Finance costs include:
 interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings (interest expense is recognised in the period in which it
is incurred)
 amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings
 amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and
 finance charges in respect of leases which are recognised in accordance with AASB 16 Leases .

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and include such things
as:
 Fuel, light and power
 Repairs and maintenance
 Other administrative expenses
 Expenditure for capital purposes (represents expenditure related to the purchase of assets that are below the capitalisation
threshold of $1,000).
The Department of Health also makes certain payments on behalf of West Gippsland Healthcare Group. These amounts have
been brought to account as grants in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and also
recording the related expense.

Non-operating expenses
Other non-operating expenses generally represent expenditure outside the normal operations such as depreciation and
amortisation, and assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration.
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Notes
to the
toFinancial
the Financial
Statements
Statements
WestWest
Gippsland
Gippsland
Healthcare
Healthcare
Group
Group
for the
forfinancial
the financial
year year
ended
ended
30 June
30 June
20212021

NoteNote
3.2 Employee
3.2 Employee
benefits
benefits
in the
in the
balance
balance
sheet
sheet

Current
Current
provisions
provisions
Accrued
Accrued
daysdays
off off
i
i
Unconditional
Unconditional
and expected
and expected
to betosettled
be settled
wholly
wholly
within
within
12 months
12 months

Annual
Annual
leaveleave
i
i
Unconditional
Unconditional
and expected
and expected
to betosettled
be settled
wholly
wholly
within
within
12 months
12 months
ii
ii
Unconditional
Unconditional
and expected
and expected
to betosettled
be settled
wholly
wholly
afterafter
12 months
12 months

LongLong
service
service
leaveleave
i
i
Unconditional
Unconditional
and expected
and expected
to betosettled
be settled
wholly
wholly
within
within
12 months
12 months
ii
ii
Unconditional
Unconditional
and expected
and expected
to betosettled
be settled
wholly
wholly
afterafter
12 months
12 months

Provisions
Provisions
related
related
to employee
to employee
benefit
benefit
on-costs
on-costs
i
i
Unconditional
Unconditional
and expected
and expected
to betosettled
be settled
within
within
12 months
12 months
ii
ii
Unconditional
Unconditional
and expected
and expected
to betosettled
be settled
afterafter
12 months
12 months

TotalTotal
current
current
employee
employee
benefits
benefits
Non-current
Non-current
provisions
provisions
Conditional
Conditional
long long
service
service
leaveleave
Provisions
Provisions
related
related
to employee
to employee
benefit
benefit
on-costs
on-costs
TotalTotal
non-current
non-current
employee
employee
benefits
benefits
TotalTotal
employee
employee
benefits
benefits
i

20212021
$'000$'000

20202020
$'000$'000

194 194
194 194

186 186
186 186

7,1547,154
1,2061,206
8,3608,360

6,3056,305
1,0751,075
7,3807,380

1,0681,068
8,6388,638
9,7069,706

1,1221,122
7,3527,352
8,4748,474

925 925
1,1061,106
2,0312,031

835 835
948 948
1,7831,783

20,291
20,291

17,823
17,823

3,0393,039
342 342
3,3813,381

3,2283,228
363 363
3,5913,591

23,672
23,672

21,414
21,414

i
The amounts
The amounts
disclosed
disclosed
are nominal
are nominal
amounts.
amounts.

ii

ii
The amounts
The amounts
disclosed
disclosed
are discounted
are discounted
to present
to present
values.
values.
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Note 3.2 Employee benefits in the balance sheet (cont'd)
How we recognise employee benefits
Employee benefit recognition
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of accrued days off, annual leave and long service leave for
services rendered to the reporting date as an expense during the period the services are delivered.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when West Gippsland Healthcare Group has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic
benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Annual leave and accrued days off
Liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as 'current liabilities'
because West Gippsland Healthcare Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.
Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are measured at:
Nominal value – if West Gippsland Healthcare Group expects to wholly settle within 12 months or
 Present value – if West Gippsland Healthcare Group does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Long service leave
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability even where the West Gippsland
Healthcare Group does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer
the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months. An unconditional right arises after a
qualifying period.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
Nominal value – if West Gippsland Healthcare Group expects to wholly settle within 12 months or
 Present value – if West Gippsland Healthcare Group does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Conditional LSL is measured at present value and is disclosed as a non-current liability. Any gain or loss following revaluation of
the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to
changes in estimations e.g. bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and changes in probability factors which are then
recognised as other economic flows.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee
decides to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

On-costs related to employee benefits
Provision for on-costs such as workers compensation and superannuation are recognised separately from provisions for employee
benefits.
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Note 3.2 (a) Employee benefits and related on-costs

Unconditional accrued days off
Unconditional annual leave entitlements
Unconditional long service leave entitlements
Total current employee benefits and related on-costs

Conditional long service leave entitlements
Total non-current employee benefits and related on-costs

2021
$'000

194
9,299
10,798
20,291

2020
$'000

186
8,210
9,427
17,823

3,381
3,381

3,591
3,591

Total employee benefits and related on-costs

23,672

21,414

Carrying amount at start of year
Additional provisions recognised
Amounts incurred during the year
Carrying amount at end of year

21,414
9,214
(6,956)
23,672

19,261
8,768
(6,615)
21,414
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Note 3.3 Superannuation

i

Defined benefit plans:
First State Super

Defined contribution plans:
First State Super
Other
Total

Contribution Outstanding at Year
End
2021
2020
$'000
$'000

Paid Contribution for the Year
2021
2020
$'000
$'000
88

103

7

7

4,415
2,824
7,327

4,172
2,498
6,773

341
226
573

331
198
536

i

The basis for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the defined benefit
superannuation plans.

How we recognise superannuation
Employees of West Gippsland Healthcare Group are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and it contributes to both
defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

Defined benefit superannuation plans
The defined benefit plan provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary. The amount charged to the
Comprehensive Operating Statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans represents the contributions made by
West Gippsland Healthcare Group to the superannuation plans in respect of the services of current West Gippsland Healthcare
Group’s staff during the reporting period. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rules of
each plan and are based upon actuarial advice.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of the plans because the
health service has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay
superannuation contributions as they fall due.
The DTF discloses the State’s defined benefits liabilities in its disclosure for administered items. However superannuation
contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the Comprehensive
Operating Statement of West Gippsland Healthcare Group.
The name, details and amounts that have been expensed in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and
contributions made by West Gippsland Healthcare Group are disclosed above.

Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the employer
contributions that are paid or payable in respect of employees who are members of these plans during the reporting period.
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.
The name, details and amounts that have been expensed in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and
contributions made by West Gippsland Healthcare Group are disclosed above.
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Note 3.4 Other economic flows included in net result

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property plant and equipment
Total net gain/(loss) on non--financial assets

2021
$'000

(19)
(19)

2020
$'000

52
52

23
23

10
10

Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability
Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows

251
251

(54)
(54)

Total gains/(losses) from other economic flows

255

8

Reduction in allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables
Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments

How we recognise other economic flows
Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result from transactions. Other
gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the gains or losses from:
 the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates and
 reclassified amounts relating to equity instruments from the reserves to retained surplus/(deficit) due to a disposal or
derecognition of the financial instrument. This does not include reclassification between equity accounts due to machinery of
government changes or ‘other transfers’ of assets.

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:
 revaluation gains/(losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.2 Property plant and equipment)
 net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets
 any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal.

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value includes:
 realised and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations of financial instruments at fair value
 impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost refer to Note 7.1 Investments and other
financial assets and;
 disposals of financial assets and derecognition of financial liabilities.

Amortisation of non-produced intangible assets

Intangible non-produced assets with finite lives are amortised as an ‘other economic flow’ on a systematic basis over the asset’s
useful life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use which is when it is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (and intangible assets not available for use) are tested annually for
impairment and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
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Note 4: Key assets to support service delivery
West Gippsland Healthcare Group controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives and conducting its activities.
They represent the key resources that have been entrusted to West Gippsland Healthcare Group to be utilised for delivery of those outputs.

Structure
4.1 Investments and other financial assets
4.2 Property, plant & equipment
4.3 Depreciation and amortisation
4.4 Inventories

Telling the COVID-19 story
Assets used to support the delivery of our services during the financial year were not materially impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Key judgements and estimates
This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

Key judgements and
estimates
Measuring fair value of
property, plant and
equipment and investment
properties

Estimating useful life and
residual value of property,
plant and equipment

Description
West Gippsland Healthcare Group obtains independent valuations for its non-current assets at least once every five
years.
If an independent valuation has not been undertaken at balance date, the health service estimates possible changes in
fair value since the date of the last independent valuation with reference to Valuer-General of Victoria indices.
Managerial adjustments are recorded if the assessment concludes a material change in fair value has occurred. Where
exceptionally large movements are identified, an interim independent valuation is undertaken.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group assigns an estimated useful life to each item of property, plant and equipment, whilst
also estimating the residual value of the asset, if any, at the end of the useful life. This is used to calculate depreciation
of the asset.
The health service reviews the useful life, residual value and depreciation rates of all assets at the end of each financial
year and where necessary, records a change in accounting estimate.

The useful life of each right-of-use asset is typically the respective lease term, except where the health service is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option contained within the lease (if any), in which case the useful life reverts
Estimating useful life of rightto the estimated useful life of the underlying asset.
of-use assets
West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgement to determine whether or not it is reasonably certain to
exercise such purchase options.
Where a lease agreement requires West Gippsland Healthcare Group to restore a right-of-use asset to its original
Estimating restoration costs at
condition at the end of a lease, the health service estimates the present value of such restoration costs. This cost is
the end of a lease
included in the measurement of the right-of-use asset, which is depreciated over the relevant lease term.
Estimating the useful life of
intangible assets

West Gippsland Healthcare Group assigns an estimated useful life to each intangible asset with a finite useful life, which
is used to calculate amortisation of the asset.
At the end of each year, West Gippsland Healthcare Group assesses impairment by evaluating the conditions and events
specific to the health service that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Where an indication exists, the health
service tests the asset for impairment.
The health service considers a range of information when performing its assessment, including considering:

Identifying indicators of
impairment

 If an asset’s value has declined more than expected based on normal use
 If a significant change in technological, market, economic or legal environment which adversely impacts the way the
 If an asset is obsolete or damaged
 If the asset has become idle or if there are plans to discontinue or dispose of the asset before the end of its useful life
 If the performance of the asset is or will be worse than initially expected.
Where an impairment trigger exists, the health services applies significant judgement and estimate to determine the
recoverable amount of the asset.
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Note 4.1 Other financial assets

Current
Term deposits > 3 months
Other - Salary Packaging
Total current financial assets

Operating Fund
2021
2020
$'000
$'000

Represented by:
Monies held in trust
Health service investments
Salary Packaging
Total other financial assets

Specific Purpose Fund
2021
2020
$'000
$'000

Consolidated
2021
2020
$'000
$'000

1,500
1,500

1,500
1,500

2,000
214
2,214

3,500
203
3,703

3,500
214
3,714

5,000
203
5,203

1,500
1,500

1,500
1,500

2,000
214
2,214

3,500
203
3,703

2,000
1,500
214
3,714

3,500
1,500
203
5,203

How we recognise investments and other financial assets
West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s investments and other financial assets are made in accordance with Standing Direction 3.7.2 - Treasury Management,
including the Central Banking System.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group manages its investments and other financial assets in accordance with an investment policy approved by the Board.
Investments held by West Gippsland Healthcare Group do not fall in the scope of the Standing Directions as they are not public entity funds (i.e. not
controlled by the government). However, such investments are consolidated into West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s financial statements as West
Gippsland Healthcare Group has control of West Gippsland Healthcare Group Foundation.
Investments are recognised when West Gippsland Healthcare Group enters into a contract to either purchase or sell the investment (i.e. when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions to the investment). Investments are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based on the Board’s intention at balance date
with respect to the timing of disposal of each asset. Term deposits with original maturity dates of three to twelve months are classified as current, whilst
term deposits with original maturity dates in excess of 12 months are classified as non-current.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through the Comprehensive Operating Statement are subject to annual review for impairment.
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Note 4.2 (a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation

Land at fair value - Crown
Land at fair value - Freehold
Total land at fair value
Buildings at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total buildings at fair value
Buildings at Cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Total right of use buildings at fair value

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

12,104
12,104

10,443
10,443

48,500
(8,141)
40,359

48,500
(4,070)
44,430

8,817
(407)
8,410

8,672
(189)
8,483

Total land and buildings

60,873

63,356

Plant and equipment at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total plant and equipment at fair value

22,083
(8,291)
13,792

21,740
(8,523)
13,218

1,590
(996)
594

1,867
(1,127)
740

12,057
(8,194)
3,862

11,343
(6,745)
4,598

Computer equipment at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total computer equipment at fair value

497
(374)
123

389
(320)
69

Furniture and fittings at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total furniture and fittings at fair value

652
(393)
259

618
(364)
254

1,008
(220)
788

740
(116)
624

Motor vehicles at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total motor vehicles at fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total medical equipment at fair value

Right of use PPE, Furniture & Fittings and Vehicles
Less accumulated depreciation
Total right of use plant, equipment, furniture, fittings and vehicles at fair value
GHA Written Down Value
Total plant, equipment, furniture, fittings and vehicles at fair value
Other assets under construction at cost
Total property, plant and equipment
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19,493

19,617

1,131

831

81,496

83,804
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4.3
4.2 (a)

4.3
4.2 (a)

Assets Under
Buildings
Construction
$'000
$'000
48,500
8,612
2
2,651
8,670
(10,431)
(4,259)
52,913
831
49
1,549
96
(1,249)
(4,289)
48,769
1,131

Plant &
equipment
$'000
11,164
2,342
(4)
(12)
1,761
(1,919)
13,332
1,621
(169)
1,153
(2,070)
13,867

Motor
vehicles
$'000
877
118
(96)
(159)
740
45
(49)
(142)
594

Medical
Equipment
$'000
3,945
1,337
(684)
4,598
725
(5)
(1,456)
3,862

Computer
Furniture & Right of use Equipment
Fittings
PE, FF&V
$'000
$'000
$'000
95
232
294
36
52
461
(6)
(39)
(56)
(30)
(92)
69
254
624
110
34
423
(1)
(106)
(55)
(29)
(153)
123
259
788
Total
$'000
84,162
6,999
(145)
(12)
(7,199)
83,804
4,556
(330)
1,660
(8,194)
81,496

The Valuer-General Victoria undertook to re-value all of West Gippsland Healthcare Groups owned and leased land and buildings to determine their fair value. The valuation, which conforms to Australian
Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on
independent assessments. The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2019.

Land and Buildings and Leased Assets Carried at Valuation

Balance at 1 July 2019
Additions
Disposals
Impairment losses recognised in net result
Net transfers between classes
Depreciation
Balance at 30 June 2020
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation increments/(decrements)
Net Transfers between classes
Depreciation
Balance at 30 June 2021

Note

Land
$'000
10,443
10,443
1,660
12,104

Note 4.2 (b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset
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Note 4.2 (b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset (cont'd)
How we recognise property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are used by West Gippsland Healthcare Group in the supply of goods or
services, for rental to others, or for administration purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one financial year.

Initial recognition
Items of property, plant and equipment (excluding right-of-use assets) are initially measured at cost. Where an asset is acquired
for no or nominal cost, being far below the fair value of the asset, the deemed cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets
transferred as part of an amalgamation/machinery of government change are transferred at their carrying amounts.
The cost of constructed non-financial physical assets includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the
project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.
The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease
or the estimated useful life of the improvements.

Subsequent measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment (excluding right-of-use assets) are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses where applicable.
Fair value is determined with reference to the asset’s highest and best use (considering legal or physical restrictions imposed on
the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset).
Further information regarding fair value measurement is disclosed below.

Revaluation
Fair value is based on periodic valuations by independent valuers, which normally occur once every five years, based upon the
asset’s Government Purpose Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate a material change in
fair value has occurred.
Where an independent valuation has not been undertaken at balance date, West Gippsland Healthcare Group perform a
managerial assessment to estimate possible changes in fair value of land and buildings since the date of the last independent
valuation with reference to Valuer-General of Victoria (VGV) indices.
An adjustment is recognised if the assessment concludes that the fair value of land and buildings has changed by 10% or more
since the last revaluation (whether that be the most recent independent valuation or managerial valuation). Any estimated change
in fair value of less than 10% is deemed immaterial to the financial statements and no adjustment is recorded. Where the
assessment indicates there has been an exceptionally material movement in the fair value of land and buildings since the last
independent valuation, being equal to or in excess of 40%, West Gippsland Healthcare Group would obtain an interim
independent valuation prior to the next scheduled independent valuation.
An independent valuation of West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s property, plant and equipment was performed by the VGV on 30
June 2019. The valuation, which complies with Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amount for
which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The managerial
assessment performed at 30 June 2021 indicated an overall increase in fair value of land of 15.90% (1.66m).
As the cumulative movement was greater than 10% for land and buildings since the last revaluation a managerial revaluation
adjustment was required as at 30 June 2021.
Revaluation increases (increments) arise when an asset’s fair value exceeds its carrying amount. In comparison, revaluation
decreases (decrements) arise when an asset’s fair value is less than its carrying amount. Revaluation increments and revaluation
decrements relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in
respect of assets in different classes.
Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ and are credited directly to the asset revaluation
reserve, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset
previously recognised as an expense in net result, in which case the increment is recognised as income in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset
revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, the decrement is recognised as an
expense in the net result.
The revaluation reserve included in equity in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment may be transferred directly to
retained earnings when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
West
Gippsland
Healthcare
Group
for
the
financial
year ended 30 June 2021
Note 4.2 (b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset (cont'd)

Note 4.2 (b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset (cont'd)
Impairment
At
the end of each financial year, West Gippsland Healthcare Group assesses if there is any indication that an item of property,
Impairment
plant and equipment may be impaired by considering internal and external sources of information. If an indication exists, West
At the end of each financial year, West Gippsland Healthcare Group assesses if there is any indication that an item of property,
Gippsland Healthcare Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
plant and equipment may be impaired by considering internal and external sources of information. If an indication exists, West
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease
Gippsland Healthcare Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
as noted above.
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease
West
Gippsland
as noted
above. Healthcare Group has concluded that the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment which are
regularly revalued is expected to be materially consistent with the current fair value. As such, there were no indications of
West Gippsland Healthcare Group has concluded that the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment which are
property, plant and equipment being impaired at balance date.
regularly revalued is expected to be materially consistent with the current fair value. As such, there were no indications of
property,
and equipment
being impaired
How weplant
recognise
right-of-use
assets at balance date.
Where
West
Gippsland right-of-use
Healthcare Group
enters a contract, which provides the health service with the right to control the use of
How we
recognise
assets
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for payment, this contract is considered a lease.
Where West Gippsland Healthcare Group enters a contract, which provides the health service with the right to control the use of
Unless
the lease
considered
a short-term
lease or
lease of athis
low-value
(refer to Note
6.1 for further information), the
an identified
assetis for
a period of
time in exchange
fora payment,
contractasset
is considered
a lease.
contract gives rise to a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability. West Gippsland Healthcare Group presents its right-ofUnless
theaslease
a short-term
lease or
of awas
low-value
Note 6.1 for further information), the
use
assets
partisofconsidered
property, plant
and equipment
as aif lease
the asset
owned asset
by the(refer
healthtoservice.
contract gives rise to a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability. West Gippsland Healthcare Group presents its right-ofRight-of-use
their respective
terms include:
use assets asassets
part ofand
property,
plant andlease
equipment
as if the asset was owned by the health service.

Right-of-use
and their
respective lease
Class of assets
right-of-use
asset
Leaseterms
terminclude:

Class
of right-of-use asset
Leased
Vehicles

1 to Lease
5 yearsterm

Presentation
Leased
Vehiclesof right-of-use assets1 to 5 years
West Gippsland Healthcare Group presents right-of-use assets as ‘property plant equipment’ unless they meet the definition of
Presentation of right-of-use assets
investment property, in which case they are disclosed as ‘investment property’ in the balance sheet.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group presents right-of-use assets as ‘property plant equipment’ unless they meet the definition of
Initial recognition
investment property, in which case they are disclosed as ‘investment property’ in the balance sheet.
When a contract is entered into, West Gippsland Healthcare Group assesses if the contract contains or is a lease. If a lease is
Initial recognition
present,
a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability is recognised. The definition and recognition criteria of a lease is
When a contract
is entered into, West Gippsland Healthcare Group assesses if the contract contains or is a lease. If a lease is
disclosed
at Note 6.1.
present,
a right-of-use
and
corresponding
leasecomprises
liability isthe
recognised.
The definition
recognition lease
criteria
of a lease is
The
right-of-use
asset is asset
initially
measured
at cost and
initial measurement
of theand
corresponding
liability,
disclosed
at Note
6.1. made at or before the commencement date
 any lease
payments
The
right-of-use
asset
is initially
at cost and comprises the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability,
 any
initial direct
costs
incurredmeasured
and;
 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
 an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
 any initial
costs
incurredreceived.
and;
located,
less direct
any lease
incentive
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 an Gippsland
estimate ofHealthcare
costs to dismantle
and remove
underlying
asset purchase
or to restore
the underlying
asset orservice
the site
it is
West
Group’s vehicle
lease the
agreements
contain
options
which the health
is on
notwhich
reasonably
located,
less
any
lease
incentive
received.
certain to exercise at the completion of the lease.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s vehicle lease agreements contain purchase options which the health service is not reasonably
West
Healthcare
Group holds
lease
agreements which contain significantly below-market terms and conditions, which
certainGippsland
to exercise
at the completion
of the
lease.
are principally to enable the health service to further its objectives. The health service has applied temporary relief and continues
West
Gippsland
Healthcare
Group
holds
leaseRefer
agreements
contain
significantly
below-market
terms
andand
conditions,
to
measure
those
right-of-use
asset
at cost.
to Notewhich
6.1 for
further
information
regarding the
nature
terms ofwhich
the
are principallylease,
to enable
the health
service
to further
its objectives.
Theon
health
has applied temporary relief and continues
concessional
and West
Gippsland
Healthcare
Group’s
dependency
suchservice
lease arrangements.
to measure those right-of-use asset at cost. Refer to Note 6.1 for further information regarding the nature and terms of the
Subsequentlease,
measurement
concessional
and West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s dependency on such lease arrangements.
Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses where
Subsequent
measurement
applicable.
Right-of-use
assets are also adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability (for example, when a variable
Right-of-use
assets
measured
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses where
lease
payment
basedare
onsubsequently
an index or rate
becomesateffective).
applicable.
Right-of-use
assets
are
also
adjusted
for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability (for example, when a variable
Impairment
lease payment based on an index or rate becomes effective).
At the end of each financial year, West Gippsland Healthcare Group assesses if there is any indication that a right-of-use asset may
Impairment
be
impaired by considering internal and external sources of information. If an indication exists, West Gippsland Healthcare Group
estimates
recoverable
of the
asset. Where
the Group
carrying
amount
of theisasset
exceeds its
amount,
an
At the endthe
of each
financialamount
year, West
Gippsland
Healthcare
assesses
if there
any indication
thatrecoverable
a right-of-use
asset may
impairment
is recognised.
be impairedloss
by considering
internal and external sources of information. If an indication exists, West Gippsland Healthcare Group
estimates
the recoverable
of the asset.
Where the assessment
carrying amount
of the
asset
exceeds
its recoverable
amount, an
West
Gippsland
Healthcare amount
Group performed
an impairment
and noted
there
were
no indications
of its right-of-use
impairment
is recognised.
assets
being loss
impaired
at balance date.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group performed an impairment assessment and noted there were no indications of its right-of-use
assets being impaired at balance date.
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Note 4.2 (c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets

Non-specialised land
Specialised land
Total land at fair value
Non-specialised buildings
Specialised buildings
Total buildings at fair value
Plant and equipment at fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Medical equipment at Fair Value
Computer equipment at fair value
Furniture and fittings at fair value
Right of use PPE, Furniture & Fittings and Vehicles
Assets Under Construction
Total plant, equipment, furniture, fittings and vehicles
at fair value

4.2 (a)

Carrying amount
30 June 2021
$'000
7,671
4,433
12,104

4.2 (a)

3,733
45,036
48,769

3,733
3,733

45,036
45,036

4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)

13,867
594
3,862
123
259
788
1,131

1,131

13,867
594
3,862
123
259
788
-

20,623

1,131

19,493

81,496

12,535

68,961

Note

Total property, plant and equipment at fair value

Non-specialised land
Specialised land
Total land at fair value
Non-specialised buildings
Specialised buildings
Total buildings at fair value
Plant and equipment at fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Medical equipment at Fair Value
Computer equipment at fair value
Furniture and fittings at fair value
Right of use PPE, Furniture & Fittings and Vehicles
Asset Under Construction
Total plant, equipment, furniture, fittings and vehicles
at fair value
Total Property, Plant and Equipment
i

Fair value measurement at end of
reporting period using:
Level 2 i
$'000
7,671
7,671

Level 3 i
$'000

4,433
4,433

Fair value measurement at end of
reporting period using:

4.2 (a)

Carrying amount
30 June 2020
$'000
6,778
3,665
10,443

4.2 (a)

3,829
49,084
52,913

3,829
3,829

49,084
49,084

4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)
4.2 (a)

13,332
740
4,598
69
254
624
831

831

13,332
740
4,598
69
254
624
-

20,448

831

19,617

83,804

11,438

72,366

i

Level 2
$'000
6,778
6,778

Level 3
$'000

i

3,665
3,665

Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
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i

4.2 (c)
4.2 (b)
4.2 (b)
4 .3
4.2 (c)

Note
4.2 (b)
4.2 (b)
4.2 (b)
4 .3

Plant and
Buildings
equipment
$'000
$'000
44,671
11,164
2
2,338
8,670
1,761
(4,259)
(1,919)
(12)
49,084
13,332
49
1,452
96
1,153
(4,193)
(2,070)
45,036
13,867

Classiﬁed in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, refer Note 4.2(c).

Balance at 1 July 2019
Additions/(Disposals)
Net Transfers between classes
- Depreciation and amortisation
- Impairment loss
Balance at 30 June 2020
Additions/(Disposals)
Net Transfers between classes
- Depreciation and Amortisation
Balance at 30 June 2021

Land
$'000
3,665
3,665
3,665

4.2 (d): Reconcilia�on of level 3 fair value measurement
Motor
Medical
Computer
Furniture & Right of use
vehicles
equipment equipment
ﬁ�ngs
assets
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
877
3,945
95
232
294
22
1,337
30
52
422
(159)
(684)
(56)
(30)
(92)
740
4,598
69
254
624
(4)
720
109
34
317
(142)
(1,456)
(55)
(29)
(153)
594
3,862
123
259
788
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Note 4.2 (e) Property, plant and equipment (fair value determination)
Asset class

Likely valuation approach

Non-specialised land
Specialised land (Crown/freehold)

Market approach
Market approach

Non-specialised buildings
Specialised buildings

Market approach
Depreciated replacement cost
approach
Market approach
Depreciated replacement cost
approach
Depreciated replacement cost
approach
Depreciated replacement cost
approach
Depreciated replacement cost
approach

Vehicles

Plant and equipment
Medical Equipment
Road, infrastructure and earthworks

Significant inputs (Level 3 only)
N/A
Community Service Obligations
Adjustments (i)
N/A
- Cost per square metre
- Useful life
N/A
- Cost per unit
- Useful life
- Cost per unit
- Useful life
- Cost per unit
- Useful life
- Cost per square metre
- Useful life

(i) A community service obligation (CSO) of 25% was applied to the West Gippsland Healthcare Group's specialised land.

How we measure fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, West Gippsland Healthcare Group has determined classes of assets on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
In addition, West Gippsland Healthcare Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
There have been no transfers between levels during the period. In the prior year, there is a transfer between non-specialised
land and specialised land to reflect the correct fair value as per the independent revaluation in 2019.
The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s independent valuation agency.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Valuation hierarchy
In determining fair values a number of inputs are used. To increase consistency and comparability in the financial statements,
these inputs are categorised into three levels, also known as the fair value hierarchy. The levels are as follows:
 Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
 Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable and
 Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.
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Note 4.2 (e) Property, plant and equipment (fair value determination) (cont'd)
Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3) fair value measurements
Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require significant judgement
and assumptions in deriving fair value for both financial and non-financial assets.
Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby
allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. However,
the fair value measurement objective remains the same, i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a
market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.

Consideration of highest and best use (HBU) for non-financial physical assets
Judgements about highest and best use must take into account the characteristics of the assets concerned, including restrictions
on the use and disposal of assets arising from the asset’s physical nature and any applicable legislative/contractual
arrangements.
In accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement paragraph 29, West Gippsland Healthcare Group has assumed the current
use of a non-financial physical asset is its HBU unless market or other factors suggest that a different use by market participants
would maximise the value of the asset.
Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until it is virtually certain
that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial physical
assets will be their highest and best uses.

Non-specialised land, non-specialised buildings and cultural assets
Non-specialised land, non-specialised buildings and cultural assets are valued using the market approach. Under this valuation
method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which are considered to have
nominal or no added improvement value.
For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an independent valuation was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria
to determine the fair value using the market approach. Valuation of the assets was determined by analysing comparable sales
and allowing for share, size, topography, location and other relevant factors specific to the asset being valued. An appropriate
rate per square metre has been applied to the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.

Specialised land and specialised buildings
Specialised land includes Crown Land which is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after
due consideration is made for any legal or physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments
made in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the assets are
not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed,
the current use of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best use.
During the reporting period, West Gippsland Healthcare Group held Crown Land. The nature of this asset means that there are
certain limitations and restrictions imposed on its use and/or disposal that may impact their fair value.
The market approach is also used for specialised land although it is adjusted for the community service obligation (CSO) to reflect
the specialised nature of the assets being valued. Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore,
these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market based direct comparison approach.
The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent
that is also equally applicable to market participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use consideration required
for fair value measurement and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible and
financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land would be classified
as Level 3 assets.
For West Gippsland Healthcare Group, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised
buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation. As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable
inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.
An independent valuation of West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the
Valuer-General Victoria. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.
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Note 4.2 (e) Property, plant and equipment (fair value determination) (cont'd)
Vehicles
The West Gippsland Healthcare Group acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic
life. The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is managed by the health service who set relevant depreciation
rates during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles does not differ materially from
the carrying amount (depreciated cost).

Furniture, fittings, plant and equipment
Furniture, fittings, plant and equipment (including medical equipment, computers and communication equipment) are held at
carrying amount (depreciated cost). When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part
of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value. Unless there is market evidence that
current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely that depreciated
replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying amount.
There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2021.
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Note 4.2 (f) Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
Note
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Revaluation increment
- Land
Balance at the end of the Reporting Period*
* Represented by:
- Land
- Buildings
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4.2 (b)

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

56,710

56,710

1,660
58,370

56,710

10,147
48,223
58,370

8,487
48,223
56,710
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Note 4.3 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles
Medical equipment
Computer equipment
Furniture and fittings
Right of use - plant, equipment, furniture, fittings and motor vehicles
Total depreciation and amortisation

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

4,289
2,070
142
1,456
55
29
153
8,194

4,259
1,919
159
684
56
30
92
7,199

How we recognise depreciation
All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets (excluding items under assets held
for sale, land and investment properties) that have finite useful lives are depreciated. Depreciation is generally calculated on a
straight-line basis at rates that allocate the asset’s value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful life.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset, whichever is the shortest. Where a
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the health service anticipates to
exercise a purchase option, the specific right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non-current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

2021
Buildings
- Structure Shell Building Fabric
- Site Engineering Services and Central Plant
Central Plant
- Fit Out
- Trunk Reticulated Building System
Plant and Equipment
Medical Equipment
Computers and Communication
Furniture and Fitting
Motor Vehicles

2020

7 to 40 Years
12 to 40 Years

7 to 40 Years
12 to 40 Years

7 to 40 Years
11 to 40 Years
3 to 40 Years
10 to 20 Years
3 to 10 Years
4 to 25 Years
4 to 10 Years

7 to 40 Years
11 to 40 Years
3 to 40 Years
10 to 20 Years
3 to 10 Years
4 to 25 Years
4 to 10 Years

As part of the building valuation, building values are separated into components and each component assessed for its useful life
which is represented above.
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Note 4.4 Inventories

Medical and surgical consumables at cost
Pharmacy supplies at cost
General stores at cost
Linen at cost
Total inventories

2021
$'000

132
2
49
57
240

2020
$'000

148
3
55
67
273

How we recognise inventories
Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale, consumption or for distribution at no or nominal cost in the
ordinary course of business operations. It excludes depreciable assets. Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
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Note 5: Other Assets and Liabilities
This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from West Gippsland Healthcare Group's operations.

Structure
5.1 Receivables and contract assets
5.2 Payables and contract liabilities
5.3 Other liabilities

Telling the COVID-19 story
Other assets and liabilities used to support the delivery of our services during the financial year were not materially impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic.

Key judgements and estimates
This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

Key judgements and estimates

Estimating the provision for
expected credit losses

Measuring deferred capital grant
income

Measuring contract liabilities

Description

West Gippsland Healthcare Group uses a simplified approach to account for the expected credit loss provision.
A provision matrix is used, which considers historical experience, external indicators and forward-looking
information to determine expected credit loss rates.
Where West Gippsland Healthcare Group has received funding to construct an identifiable non-financial asset,
such funding is recognised as deferred capital grant income until the underlying asset is constructed.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgement when measuring the deferred capital grant
income balance, which references the estimated the stage of completion at the end of each financial year.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgement to measure its progress towards satisfying a
performance obligation as detailed in Note 2. Where a performance obligation is yet to be satisfied, the health
service assigns funds to the outstanding obligation and records this as a contract liability until the promised
good or service is transferred to the customer.
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Note 5.1 Receivables and contract assets

Current receivables and contract assets
Contractual
Inter hospital debtors
Trade debtors
Patient fees
Provision for impairment
Accrued investment income
GHA
Accrued revenue
Amounts receivable from governments and agencies
Total contractual receivables

Notes

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

1,171
635
251
(57)
3
111
127
971
3,212

Statutory
GST receivable
Total statutory receivables

1,734
542
331
(81)
48
115
455
3,144

-

93
93

Total current receivables and contract assets

3,212

3,237

Non current receivables and contract assets
Contractual
Long service leave - Department of Health
Total contractual receivables

1,077
1,077

1,086
1,086

Total non-current receivables and contract assets

1,077

1,086

Total receivables and contract assets

4,289

4,323

4,289
57
-

4,323
81
(93)

4,346

4,311

(i) Financial assets classified as receivables and contract assets (Note 7.1(a))
Total receivables and contract assets
Provision for impairment
GST receivable
Total financial assets
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Note 5.1 (a) Movement in the allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables
2021
$'000

Balance at the beginning of the year
Increase (Decrease) in allowance
Amounts written off during the year
Reversal of allowance written off during the year as uncollectable
Balance at the end of the year

81
(23)
80
(81)
57

2020
$'000

90
(10)
89
(88)
81

How we recognise receivables
Receivables consist of:
 Contractual receivables, which mostly includes debtors in relation to goods and services. These receivables are classified as
financial instruments and categorised as ‘financial assets at amortised costs’. They are initially recognised at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. The health service holds the contractual receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore they are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.
 Statutory receivables, which mostly includes amounts owing for Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits that are
recoverable. Statutory receivables do not arise from contracts and are recognised and measured similarly to contractual
receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as financial instruments for disclosure purposes. The health service
applies AASB 9 for initial measurement of the statutory receivables and as a result statutory receivables are initially recognised at
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.
Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of recognition.
In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional
judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with
AASB 136 Impairment of Assets .
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various geographical
areas. Based on historical information about customer default rates, management consider the credit quality of trade receivables
that are not past due or impaired to be good.

Impairment losses of contractual receivables
Refer to Note 7.1 (a) for West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s contractual impairment losses.
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Note 5.2 Payables and contract liabilities

Current payables and contract liabilities
Contractual
Trade creditors
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued expenses
Accrued expenses - GHA
Deferred grant income
Salary packaging
Amounts payable to governments and agencies
Other
Other - GHA
Total contractual payables

Note

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

2,423
3,008
2,291
177
102
214
523
26
20
8,784

2,280
2,070
1,975
96
452
203
409
27
11
7,523

206
206

-

Total current payables and contract liabilities

8,990

7,523

Total payables and contract liabilities

8,990

7,523

8,990
(102)
(206)

7,523
(452)
-

8,682

7,071

5.2(a)

Statutory
GST/FBT payable
Total statutory payables

(i) Financial liabilities classified as payables and contract liabilities (Note 7.1(a))
Total payables and contract liabilities
Deferred grant income
GST/FBT payable
Total financial liabilties

7.1(a)

How we recognise payables and contract liabilities

Payables consist of:

 Contractual payables, which mostly includes payables in relation to goods and services. These payables are classified as
financial instruments and measured at amortised cost. Accounts payable and salaries and wages payable represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to the West Gippsland Healthcare Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid.
 Statutory payables, which mostly includes amount payable for Goods and Services Tax (GST) payable. Statutory payables are
recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the
category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from contracts.
The normal credit terms for accounts payable are usually Net 60 days.
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Note 5.2 (a) Deferred capital grant income

Opening balance of deferred grant income
Grant consideration for capital works received during the year
Deferred grant revenue recognised as revenue due to completion of capital
works
Closing balance of deferred grant income

2021
$'000

2,281

2020
$'000

4,107

(2,281)
-

(4,107)
-

How we recognise deferred capital grant revenue
Capital grant revenue is recognised in accordance with the relevant funding conditions, since this is the time when West
Gippsland Healthcare Group satisfies its obligations. The progressive percentage of costs incurred is used to recognise income
because this most closely reflects the percentage of completion of the building works. As a result, West Gippsland Healthcare
Group has deferred recognition of a portion of the grant consideration received as a liability for the outstanding obligations.

Note 5.2 (b) Contract liabilities/Unearned Income

Opening balance of contract liabilities
Grant Consideration received during the year
Revenue recognised for the completion of a performance obligation
Total contract liabilities
* Represented by:
- Current contract liabilities

2021
$'000

452
66,040
(66,390)
102

2020
$'000
2,068
61,065
(62,681)
452

102
102

452
452

How we recognise contract liabilities
Contract liabilities include consideration received in advance from customers in respect of Victorian Department of Health
activity based funding. The balance of contract liabilities was lower than the previous reporting period due to changes in policy
and funding requirements for recall and WGHG's actual activity performance against the yearly funding target.
Contract liabilities are derecognised and recorded as revenue when promised goods and services are transferred to the
customer. Refer to Note 2.1.

Financial guarantees
Payments that are contingent under financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a liability, at fair value, at the time the
guarantee is issued. Subsequently, should there be a material increase in the likelihood that the guarantee may have to be
exercised, the liability is recognised at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model
under AASB 9 Financial Instruments and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised.
In the determination of fair value, consideration is given to factors including the overall capital management/prudential
supervision framework in operation, the protection provided by the Department of Health by way of funding should the
probability of default increase, probability of default by the guaranteed party and the likely loss to the health service in the
event of default.

Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 7.2(b) for the ageing analysis of payables.
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Note 5.3 Other liabilities

Current monies held it trust
Refundable accommodation deposits
Rental Bonds
Other monies
Total current monies held in trust
* Represented by:
- Cash assets
- Investment and other financial assets

Notes

6.2
4.1

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

10,458
8
115
10,581

10,022
12
29
10,063

8,581
2,000
10,581

6,563
3,500
10,063

How we recognise other liabilities
Refundable Accommodation Deposit (RAD)/Accommodation Bond liabilities
RADs/accommodation bonds are non-interest-bearing deposits made by some aged care residents to West Gippsland Healthcare
Group upon admission. These deposits are liabilities which fall due and payable when the resident leaves the home. As there is no
unconditional right to defer payment for 12 months, these liabilities are recorded as current liabilities.
RAD/accommodation bond liabilities are recorded at an amount equal to the proceeds received, net of retention and any other
amounts deducted from the RAD/accommodation bond in accordance with the Aged Care Act 1997 .
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Note 6 How we finance our operations
This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by West Gippsland Healthcare Group during its operations, along with interest
expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other information related to financing activities of West Gippsland Healthcare Group.
This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash balances). Note 7.1 provides additional,
specific financial instrument disclosures.

Structure
6.1 Borrowings
6.2 Cash and cash equivalents
6.3 Commitments for expenditure
6.4 Non-cash financing and investing activities

Telling the COVID-19 story
Our finance and borrowing arrangements were not materially impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic because the health service’s response was
funded by Government.

Key judgements and estimates
This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

Key judgements and
estimates

Determining if a contract is or
contains a lease

Description

West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgement to determine if a contract is or contains a lease
by considering if the health service:
 has the right-to-use an identified asset
 has the right to obtain substantially all economic benefits from the use of the leased asset and
 can decide how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the lease.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies significant judgement when determining if a lease meets the shortterm or low value lease exemption criteria.

Determining if a lease meets the The health service estimates the fair value of leased assets when new. Where the estimated fair value is less
short-term or low value asset than $10,000, the health service applies the low-value lease exemption.
lease exemption
The health service also estimates the lease term with reference to remaining lease term and period that the
lease remains enforceable. Where the enforceable lease period is less than 12 months the health service
applies the short-term lease exemption.

Discount rate applied to future
lease payments

West Gippsland Healthcare Group discounts its lease payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
this rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for the health service’s lease arrangements,
West Gippsland Healthcare Group uses its incremental borrowing rate, which is the amount the health service
would have to pay to borrow funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Assessing the lease term

The lease term represents the non-cancellable period of a lease, combined with periods covered by an option
to extend or terminate the lease if West Gippsland Healthcare Group is reasonably certain to exercise such
options.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group determines the likelihood of exercising such options on a lease-by-lease
basis through consideration of various factors including:
 If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the health service is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate) the lease.
 If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the health service is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate) the lease.
 The health service considers historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption to replace such
leased assets.
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Note 6.1 Borrowings

Current borrowings
(i)
Lease liability
(ii)
Advances from government - DH

Note
6.1 (a)

Total current borrowings
Non-current borrowings
(i)
Lease liability
(ii)
Advances from government - DH
Total non-current borrowings

6.1 (a)

Total borrowings
i

2021
$'000

2020
$'000
260

147

631
891

1,859
2,006

531

542

242
773

867
1,409

1,664

3,415

Secured by the assets leased.
These are secured loans which bear no interest.

ii

How we recognise borrowings
Borrowings refer to interesting bearing liabilities mainly raised from advances from the Treasury Corporation of Victoria (TCV) and
other funds raised through lease liabilities, service concession arrangements and other interest-bearing arrangements.

Initial recognition
All borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received, less directly attributable transaction costs. The
measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the West Gippsland Healthcare Group has categorised
its liability as either ‘financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss’, or financial liabilities at ‘amortised cost’.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the
initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in the net result over the period of the borrowing using the
effective interest method. Non-interest bearing borrowings are measured at ‘fair value through profit or loss’.

Maturity analysis
Please refer to Note 7.2(b) for the maturity analysis of borrowings.

Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults and breaches of any of the loans.
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Note 6.1 (a) Lease liabilities
West Gippsland Healthcare Group's lease liabilities are summarised below:

Total undiscounted lease liabilities
Less unexpired finance expenses
Net lease liabilities

2021
$'000

817
(26)
791

2020
$'000

722
(33)
689

The following table sets out the maturity analysis of lease liabilities, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be
made after the reporting date.

Not longer than one year
Longer than one year but not longer than five years
Minimum future lease liability
Less unexpired finance expenses
Present value of lease liability

2021
$'000

* Represented by:
- Current liabilities
- Non-current liabilities

277
540
817
(26)
791

2020
$'000

260
531
791

196
526
722
(33)
689

147
542
689

How we recognise lease liabilities

A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right for West Gippsland Healthcare Group to use an asset
for a period of time in exchange for payment.
To apply this definition, West Gippsland Healthcare Group ensures the contract meets the following criteria:
 the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made available to West Gippsland Healthcare Group and for which the supplier does not have
substantive substitution rights.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract and West Gippsland Healthcare
Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use; and
 West Gippsland Healthcare Group has the right to take decisions in respect of ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is
used throughout the period of use.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s lease arrangements consist of the following:
Type of asset leased
Lease term
Leased plant, equipment, furniture, fittings and vehicles

1 to 5 years

All leases are recognised on the balance sheet, with the exception of low value leases (less than $10,000 AUD) and short term
leases of less than 12 months. The following low value, short term and variable lease payments are recognised in profit or loss:

Type of payment

Low value lease payments

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Description of
payment

Type of leases
captured

Leases where the
underlying asset’s fair
Computers & Printers
value, when new, is no
more than $10,000
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Note 6.1 (a) Lease liabilities (cont'd)
Separation of lease and non-lease components
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the lessee is required to separate out and account
separately for non-lease components within a lease contract and exclude these amounts when determining the lease liability and
right-of-use asset amount.

Initial measurement
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily determinable or West Gippsland Healthcare Groups incremental
borrowing rate. Our lease liability has been discounted by rates of between 1.87% and 3.25%.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentive receivable
 variable payments based on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date
 amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee
 payments arising from purchase and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to
reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the
right of use asset is already reduced to zero.
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Note 6.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand (excluding monies held in trust)
Cash at bank (excluding monies held in trust)
Cash at bank - CBS (excluding monies held in trust)
Total cash held for operations

2021
$'000

Note

5
7,369
3,851
11,225

Cash at bank (monies held in trust)
Cash at bank - CBS (monies held in trust)
Total cash held as monies in trust
Total cash and cash equivalents

7.1 (a)

2020
$'000

4
1,358
5,123
6,485

123
8,458
8,581

41
6,522
6,563

19,806

13,048

How we recognise cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and in banks, deposits at call and highly liquid
investments (with an original maturity date of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash
commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are included as
liabilities on the balance sheet. The cash flow statement includes monies held in trust.
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Note 6.3 Commitments for expenditure

Capital expenditure commitments
Less than one year
Total capital expenditure commitments

2021
$'000

2020
$'000
-

248
248

Non-cancellable short term and low value lease commitments
Less than one year
Longer than one year but not longer than five years
Total non-cancellable short term and low value lease commitments

223
352
575

215
409
624

Total commitments for expenditure (inclusive of GST)
Less GST recoverable from Australian Tax Office
Total commitments for expenditure (exclusive of GST)

575
(52)
523

872
(79)
793

Future lease payments are recognised on the balance sheet, refer to Note 6.1 Borrowings.

How we disclose our commitments
Our commitments relate to expenditure and short term and low value leases.

Expenditure commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments are
disclosed at their nominal value and are inclusive of the GST payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides
additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant projects are stated. These future expenditures cease
to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet.

Short term and low value leases
West Gippsland Healthcare Group discloses short term and low value lease commitments which are excluded from the
measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Refer to Note 6.1 for further information.
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Non-cash
financing
financing
andand
investing
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Acquisition
Acquisition
of plant
of plant
and equipment
and equipment
by means
by means
of Leases
of Leases
TotalTotal
non-cash
non-cash
financing
financing
and investing
and investing
activities
activities
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20212021
$'000$'000
423 423
423 423

20202020
$'000$'000
461 461
461 461
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Note 7: Risks, contingencies and valuation uncertainties
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary
to make judgements and estimates associated with recognition and measurement of items in the financial statements. This
section sets out financial instrument specific information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those items that
are contingent in nature or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, which for the health service is related mainly
to fair value determination.

Structure
7.1 Financial instruments
7.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
7.3 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
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Note 7.1 Categorisation of financial instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of West Gippsland Healthcare Group's activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities
arise under statute rather than a contract (for example, taxes, fines and penalties). Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the
definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

30 June 2021
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables and contract assets
Investments and other financial assets
i
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities - Refundable Accommodation Deposits
Other Financial Liabilities - Other
Total Financial Liabilities i

30 June 2020
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and contract assets
Investments and other financial assets
i
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities - Refundable Accommodation Deposits
Other Financial Liabilities - Other
Total Financial Liabilities i

Note

Financial Assets
at Amortised
Cost
$'000

Financial
Liabilities at
Amortised Cost
$'000

Total
$'000

6.2
5.1
4.1

19,806
4,346
3,714
27,866

-

19,806
4,346
3,714
27,866

5.2
6.1
5.3
5.3

-

8,682
1,664
10,458
123
20,927

8,682
1,664
10,458
123
20,927

Note

Financial Assets
at Amortised
Cost
$'000

Financial
Liabilities at
Amortised Cost
$'000

Total
$'000

6.2
5.1
4.1

13,048
4,311
5,203
22,562

-

13,048
4,311
5,203
22,562

5.2
6.1
5.3
5.3

-

7,071
3,415
10,022
41
20,549

7,071
3,415
10,022
41
20,549

i The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST receivable and DH receivable) and statutory payables (i.e. Revenue in Advance and DH payable).
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Note 7.1 Categorisation of financial instruments (cont'd)
How we categorise financial instruments
Categories of financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when West Gippsland Healthcare Group becomes party to the contractual provisions to the instrument. For
financial assets, this is at the date West Gippsland Healthcare Group commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date
accounting is adopted).
Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the instrument is
classified at fair value through net result, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately.
Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine the fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are
adopted.
Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component or if
the practical expedient was applied as specified in AASB 15 para 63.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if both of the following criteria are met and the assets are not designated as fair value through
net result:
 the assets are held by West Gippsland Healthcare Group solely to collect the contractual cash flows, and
 the assets’ contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
on specific dates.
These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group recognises the following assets in this category:
 cash and deposits
 receivables (excluding statutory receivables), and
 term deposits.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
 the assets are held by West Gippsland Healthcare Group to achieve its objective both by collecting the contractual cash flows and by selling
the financial assets; and
 the assets’ contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.
Equity investments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the assets are not held for trading and West Gippsland
Healthcare Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise in this category.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group recognises the following assets in this category:
 investments in equity instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through net result
West Gippsland Healthcare Group initially designates a financial instrument as measured at fair value through net result if:
 it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (often referred to as an “accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on them, on a different basis
 it is in accordance with the documented risk management or investment strategy and information about the groupings was documented
appropriately, so the performance of the financial asset can be managed and evaluated consistently on a fair value basis, or
 it is a hybrid contract that contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows otherwise required by the contract.
The initial designation of the financial instruments to measure at fair value through net result is a one-time option on initial classification and is
irrevocable until the financial asset is derecognised.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group recognises listed equity securities as mandatorily measured at fair value through net result and has
designated all managed investment schemes as well as certain 5-year government bonds as fair value through net result.
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Note 7.1 (a) Categorisation of financial instruments (cont'd)
Categories of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised when West Gippsland Healthcare Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the instrument.
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the instrument is classified at fair value through
profit or loss, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately.

Financial liabilities at fair value through net result
A financial liability is measured at fair value through net result if the financial liability is:
 held for trading, or
 initially designated as at fair value through net result.
Changes in fair value are recognised in the net results as other economic flows, unless the changes in fair value relate to changes in West
Gippsland Healthcare Group’s own credit risk. In this case, the portion of the change attributable to changes in West Gippsland Healthcare
Group's own credit risk is recognised in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling to net result when the financial liability is
derecognised.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, where they are not held at fair value through net result.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest expense in net result
over the relevant period. The effective interest is the internal rate of return of the financial asset or liability. That is, it is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the instrument to the net carrying amount at initial recognition.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group recognises the following liabilities in this category:
 payables (excluding statutory payables and contract liabilities)
 borrowings, and
 other liabilities (including monies held in trust).

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial instrument assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated balance sheet when, and only when,
West Gippsland Healthcare Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intend either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
Some master netting arrangements do not result in an offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities. Where West Gippsland Healthcare Group
does not have a legally enforceable right to offset recognised amounts, because the right to offset is enforceable only on the occurrence of
future events such as default, insolvency or bankruptcy, they are reported on a gross basis.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
 West Gippsland Healthcare Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement or
 West Gippsland Healthcare Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.
Where West Gippsland Healthcare Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the
asset is recognised to the extent of West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised as an ‘other economic flow’ in the comprehensive operating
statement.

Reclassification of financial instruments
A financial asset is required to be reclassified between fair value between amortised cost, fair value through net result and fair value through
other comprehensive income when, and only when, West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s business model for managing its financial assets has
changed such that its previous model would no longer apply.
A financial liability reclassification is not permitted.
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Note 7.2 (a) Contractual receivables at amortised cost
As a whole, West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s financial risk management program seeks to manage the risks and the associated volatility of its financial
performance.
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, included the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement, and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument above are disclosed
throughout the financial statements.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk. West
Gippsland Healthcare Group manages these financial risks in accordance with its financial risk management policy.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed. Primary responsibility for the
identification and management of financial risks rests with the Accountable Officer.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the possibility that a borrower will default on its financial obligations as and when they fall due. West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s
exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of a counter party on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to West Gippsland
Healthcare Group. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis.
Credit risk associated with West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian
Government. For debtors other than the Government, the health service is exposed to credit risk associated with patient and other debtors.
In addition, West Gippsland Healthcare Group does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual financial
assets that are on fixed interest, except for cash and deposits, which are mainly cash at bank. As with the policy for debtors, West Gippsland Healthcare
Group’s policy is to only deal with banks with high credit ratings.
Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that West Gippsland Healthcare Group will not be
able to collect a receivable. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, debtors that are more than 60 days
overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.
Contract financial assets are written off against the carrying amount when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Bad debt written off by mutual
consent is classified as a transaction expense. Bad debt written off following a unilateral decision is recognised as other economic flows in the net result.
Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any
allowances for losses, represents West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any
collateral obtained.
There has been no material change to West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s credit risk profile in 2020-21.

Impairment of financial assets under AASB 9
West Gippsland Healthcare Group records the allowance for expected credit loss for the relevant financial instruments applying AASB 9’s Expected Credit
Loss approach. Subject to AASB 9, impairment assessment includes the health service’s contractual receivables and its investment in debt instruments.
Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under AASB 9. Other financial assets mandatorily measured or designated at fair value through net
result are not subject to impairment assessment under AASB 9.
Credit loss allowance is classified as other economic flows in the net result. Contractual receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery and impairment losses are classified as a transaction expense. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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5.1

Note

5.1

3 Months - 1
Year
9.90%
23.77%
122
251
(12)
(60)

1 - 3 Months

Less than 1
month
0.27%
3.79%
2,270
77
(6)
(3)

Current

2,720
(81)

Total

2,168
(57)

Total

West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s non-contractual receivables arising from statutory requirements are not financial instruments. However, they are nevertheless recognised
and measured in accordance with AASB 9 requirements as if those receivables are financial instruments.
Both the statutory receivables and investments in debt instruments are considered to have low credit risk, taking into account the counterparty’s credit rating, risk of default
and capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised.

Statutory receivables and debt investments at amortised cost

30 June 2020
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables
Loss allowance

30 June 2021
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables
Loss allowance

1 - 3 Months

3 Months - 1
Year
9.07%
17.99%
96
228
(9)
(41)

Current

Less than 1
month
0.30%
3.85%
1,792
52
(5)
(2)

On this basis, West Gippsland Healthcare Group determines the closing loss allowance at the end of the financial year as follows:

West Gippsland Healthcare Group applies AASB 9’s simplified approach for all contractual receivables to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss
allowance based on the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. West Gippsland Healthcare Group has grouped contractual receivables on shared credit risk
characteristics and days past due and select the expected credit loss rate based on West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s past history, existing market conditions, as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of the financial year.

Contractual receivables at amortised cost

Note 7.2 (a) Contractual receivables at amortised cost (cont'd)
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i

Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes statutory financial liabilities (i.e. GST payable).

Consolidated
30 June 2020
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities - Refundable Accommodation Deposits
Other Financial Liabilities - Other
Total Financial Liabilities

Consolidated
30 June 2021
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities - Refundable Accommodation Deposits
Other Financial Liabilities - Patient monies held in trust
Total Financial Liabilities

5.2
6.1
5.3
5.3

Note

Note
5.2
6.1
5.3
5.3

7,071
3,448
10,022
41
20,582

Nominal
Amount
$'000

Carrying
Amount
$'000
7,071
3,415
10,022
41
20,549

Nominal
Amount
$'000
8,682
1,690
10,458
123
20,953

Carrying
Amount
$'000
8,682
1,664
10,458
123
20,927

1,346
141
173
1,660

105
2,661
5,604
8,370

494
4,245
4,739

1-5 Years
$'000

Maturity Dates
Less than 1
3 months - 1
1-3 Months
Month
Year
$'000
$'000
$'000
5,620
119
41
5,780

772
7,307
8,079

1-5 Years
$'000

Maturity Dates
Less than 1
3 months - 1
Month
Year
1-3 Months
$'000
$'000
$'000
7,679
970
33
147
162
609
808
2,343
123
7,949
1,940
2,985

Liquidity risk arises from being unable to meet financial obligations as they fall due.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is exposed to liquidity risk mainly through the financial liabilities as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet and the amounts related to financial
guarantees. The health service manages its liquidity risk by:
 close monitoring of its short-term and long-term borrowings by senior management, including monthly reviews on current and future borrowing levels and requirements
 maintaining an adequate level of uncommitted funds that can be drawn at short notice to meet its short-term obligations
 holding investments and other contractual financial assets that are readily tradeable in the financial markets, and
 careful maturity planning of its financial obligations based on forecasts of future cash flows.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk. Cash for unexpected events is generally
sourced from liquidation of investments and other financial assets.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s financial liabilities. For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to
individual notes to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Note 7.2 (b) Payables and borrowings maturity analysis
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Note 7.2 (c) Market risk
West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price
risk. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are disclosed below.

Sensitivity disclosure analysis and assumptions
West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s sensitivity to market risk is determined based on the observed range of actual historical data for the
preceding five-year period. West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s fund managers cannot be expected to predict movements in market rates
and prices. The following movements are ‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12 months:
 a change in interest rates of 1% up or down

Interest rate risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group does not hold any interest-bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore
has no exposure to fair value interest rate risk.
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. West Gippsland Healthcare Group has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risks through cash and deposits, term
deposits and bank overdrafts that are at floating rate.

Foreign currency risk

All foreign currency transactions during the financial year are brought to account using the exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction. Foreign monetary items existing at the end of the reporting period are translated at the closing rate at the date of the end of
the reporting period.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk.
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Note 7.3: Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
At balance date, the Board are not aware of any contingent assets or liabilities.
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Note 8: Other Disclosures
This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the
understanding of this financial report.

Structure
8.1 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash flow from operating activities
8.2 Responsible persons disclosure
8.3 Remuneration of executives
8.4 Related parties
8.5 Remuneration of auditors
8.6 Jointly controlled operations
8.7 Events occurring after the balance sheet date
8.8 Equity
8.9 Economic dependency

Telling the COVID-19 story
Our other disclosures were not materially impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on our economy and the
health of our community.
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Note 8.1 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash flows from operating activities
2021
$'000
(5,558)

2020
$'000
(4,423)

19
(23)
8,194
(621)
(251)
5

(52)
(10)
7,199
(1,071)
54
35

Movements in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables and contract assets
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase/(Decrease) in payables and contract liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in employee benefits
Increase/(Decrease) in other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities

58
33
(68)
1,456
2,508
(132)
82

(917)
28
4
(1,285)
2,100
(130)
32

Net cash inflow from operating activities

5,702

1,564

Net result for the year
Non-cash movements:
(Gain)/Loss on sale or disposal of non-financial assets
Allowance for impairment of contractual receivables
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Assets and services received free of charge
(Gain)/Loss on revaluation of long service leave liability
Discount (interest) / expense on loan
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Note 8.2 Responsible persons
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994 , the following
disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

Period
The Honourable Martin Foley:
Minister for Mental Health
Minister for Health
Minister for Ambulance Services
Minister for the Coordination of Health and Human Services: COVID-19

1 Jul 2020 - 29 Sep 2020
26 Sep 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
26 Sep 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
26 Sep 2020 - 9 Nov 2020

The Honourable Jenny Mikakos:
Minister for Health
Minister for Ambulance Services
Minister for the Coordination of Health and Human Services: COVID-19

1 Jul 2020 - 26 Sep 2020
1 Jul 2020 - 26 Sep 2020
1 Jul 2020 - 26 Sep 2020

The Honourable Luke Donnellan:
Minister for Child Protection
Minister for Disability, Ageing and Carers

1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021

The Honourable James Merlino:
Minister for Mental Health

29 Sep 2020 - 30 Jun 2021

Governing Boards
Mrs C Holland (Chair of the Board)
Mrs S Brentnall
Mr J Chikuse
Mrs F Firdous
Mrs S Lukies
Ms S Lloyd
Ms J Moorfoot
Mr J Prestidge
Mr A Selent
Mrs L Williams

1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021
1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021

Accountable Officers

Mr D Weeks (Chief Executive Officer)

1 Jul 2020 - 30 Jun 2021

Remuneration of Responsible Persons

The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands:

2021
No

Income Band
$10,000 - $19,999
$20,000 - $29,999
$400,000 - $410,000
$410,000 - $419,999
Total Numbers

-

9
1

2020
No

1
11

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the
reporting entity amounted to:

2021
$'000

-

9
1
1
11

2020
$'000
574

562

Amounts relating to the Governing Board Members and Accountable Officer of West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s controlled entities are
disclosed in their own financial statements. Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported within the Department of
Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.
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Note 8.3 Remuneration of executives
The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and the Accountable Officer, and their total remuneration during the
reporting period are shown in the table below. Total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent
executive officers over the reporting period.

Remuneration of executive officers

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits
i
Total remuneration
Total number of executives
Total annualised employee equivalent ii

Total Remuneration
2021
2020
$'000
$'000
1,002
896
87
80
25
19
151
1,113
1,146
5
4.6

5
4.6

i The total number of executive officers includes persons who meet the definition of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of West
Gippsland Healthcare Groups under AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures and are also reported within Note 8.4 Related Parties.
ii
Annualised employee equivalent is based on working 38 ordinary hours per week over the reporting period.
Total remuneration payable to executives during the year included and a number of executives who received bonus payments
during the year. These bonus payments depend on the terms of individual employment contracts.
Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange for services
rendered, and is disclosed in the following categories:

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries and wages, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular basis, as well as non-monetary benefits
such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.

Post-employment benefits

Pensions and other retirement benefits (such as superannuation guarantee contributions) paid or payable on a discrete basis
when employment has ceased.

Other long-term benefits

Long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation.

Termination benefits
Termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.
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Note 8.4: Related Parties
The West Gippsland Healthcare Group is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of the health
service include:
 all key management personnel (KMP) and their close family members and personal business interests
 cabinet ministers (where applicable) and their close family members
 jointly controlled operations – A member of the Gippsland Health Alliance; and
 all health services and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the State of Victoria financial statements.
KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the West Gippsland
Healthcare Group and its controlled entities, directly or indirectly.

Key management personnel
The Board of Directors and the Chief Exectuive Officer of West Gippsland Healthcare Groups and it's controlled entities are deemed to
be KMPs.

KMP
Mrs Christine Holland
Mrs Sara Brentnall
Mr Joshua Chikuse
Mrs Farhat Firdous
Mrs Sarah Lukies
Ms Susan Lloyd
Ms Joanne Moorfoot
Mr Jayman Prestidge
Mr Adam Selent
Mrs Leanne Williams
Mr Dan Weeks

Position Title
Chair of the Board
Board Director
Board Director
Board Director
Board Director
Board Director
Board Director
Board Director
Board Director
Board Director
Chief Executive Officer

The compensation detailed below excludes the salaries and benefits the Portfolio Ministers receive. The Minister’s remuneration and
allowances is set by the Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968 and is reported within the Department of Parliamentary
Services’ Financial Report.

2021
$'000

Compensation - KMPs
Short-term Employee Benefits i
Post-employment Benefits
Other Long-term Benefits
Total ii

2020
$'000

530
35
9
574

519
34
8
561

i Total remuneration paid to KMPs employed as a contractor during the reporting period through accounts payable has been reported under short-term employee benefits.
ii KMPs are also reported in Note 8.2 Responsible Persons or Note 8.3 Remuneration of Executives.

Significant transactions with government related entities
The West Gippsland Healthcare Group received funding from the Department of Health of $104.38m (2020: $91.91m) and indirect
contributions of $0.19 m (2020: $0.068 m). Balances outstanding as at 30 June 2021 are $0.97m (2020 $Nil)
Expenses incurred by the West Gippsland Healthcare Group in delivering services and outputs are in accordance with HealthShare
Victoria requirements. Goods and services including procurement, diagnostics, patient meals and multi-site operational support are
provided by other Victorian Health Service Providers on commercial terms.
Professional medical indemnity insurance and other insurance products are obtained from the Victorian Managed Insurance Authority.
The Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer require the West Gippsland Healthcare Group to hold cash (in excess of working
capital) in accordance with the State of Victoria’s centralised banking arrangements. All borrowings are required to be sourced from
Treasury Corporation Victoria unless an exemption has been approved by the Minister for Health and the Treasurer.
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Note 8.4: Related Parties (cont'd)
Transactions with KMPs and other related parties
Given the breadth and depth of State government activities, related parties transact with the Victorian public sector in a manner
consistent with other members of the public eg stamp duty and other government fees and charges. Further employment of processes
within the Victorian public sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Public Administration Act 2004 and Codes of
Conduct and Standards issued by the Victorian Public Sector Commission. Procurement processes occur on terms and conditions
consistent with the HealthShare Victoria and Victorian Government Procurement Board requirements.
Outside of normal citizen type transactions with the West Gippsland Healthcare Group, there were no related party transactions that
involved key management personnel, their close family members or their personal business interests. No provision has been required,
nor any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from related parties. There were no related party transactions with Cabinet
Ministers required to be disclosed in 2021 (2020: none).
There were no related party transactions required to be disclosed for the West Gippsland Healthcare Group Board of Directors, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Directors in 2021 (2020: none).
Except for the transaction listed below, there were no other related party transactions required to be disclosed for the West Gippsland
Healthcare Group Board of Directors in 2021.
Funding Received
Entity
Monash Health
Alfred Health
Latrobe Regional Hospital
Gippsland Health Alliance

Description of Service
Provision of Linen Services
Provision of Linen Services
Transitional Care Program
Information Technology

2021
$'000

7,742
3,385
790
2,730

2020
$'000

6,965
3,653
740
2,371

Payments Made
Entity
Victorian Managed Insurance Authority
Ambulance Victoria
Monash Health
Latrobe Regional Hospital
Gippsland Health Alliance

Description of Service
Annual Insurance Premium
Provision of Patient Transport
Doctors on Rotation
Doctors on Rotation
Information Technology

2021
$'000

2,110
1,554
2,026
885
3,870

2020
$'000

2,167
1,553
1,708
799
3,457

Debtors Receivable
Entity
Alfred Health
Monash Health
Latrobe Regional Hospital
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Description of Service
Provision of Linen Services
Provision of Linen Services
Transitional Care Program
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2021
$'000

352
736
59

2020
$'000

488
1,272
64
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NoteNote
8.5: 8.5:
Remuneration
Remuneration
of Auditors
of Auditors

Victorian
Victorian
Auditor-General's
Auditor-General's
Office
Office
AuditAudit
of the
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the financial
statements
statements
TotalTotal
remuneration
remuneration
of auditors
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20212021
$'000$'000

20202020
$'000$'000

41 41
41 41
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Note 8.6 Joint arrangements
Principal Activity

Ownership Interest
2021
2020
%
%

Gippsland Health Alliance
Information Technology
1 3 .5 7
1 3 .6 8
West Gippsland Healthcare Group's interes�n the above joint arrangemen ts are detailed below. The amounts are included in the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements under their respec�ve categories:
2021
$'000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Current liabili�es
Right of use liabili�es - Current
Accrued Expenses
Other
Total current liabili�es
Non-current liabili�es
Right of use liabili�es - Non Current
Total non-current liabili�es
Total liabili�es
Net assets
Equity
Accumulated surplus
Total equity

2020
$'000
681
111
590
1,382

838
115
466
1,419

172
172

114
114

1,554

1,533

26
177
20
223

23
96
11
130

69
69

38
38

292

168

1,262

1,365

1,262
1,262

1,365
1,365

West Gippsland Healthcare Groups interest in revenues and expenses resul�ng from joint arrangements are detailed below:
2021
$'000

2020
$'000

Revenue
EMRCH Services
Other Income from Continuing Operations
Interest Income
Total revenue

461
1,963
5
2,429

426
1,933
12
2,371

Expenses
EMRCH Services
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations
Deprecia�on
Total expenses

663
1,823
46
2,532

506
1,790
30
2,326

Net result

(103)

45

Con�ngent liabili�es and capital commitments
There are no known con�ngent liabili�es or capital commitments held by the joint arrangements at balance date.
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Note 8.7 Events Occurring after Balance Sheet date
There are no events occurring after the Balance Sheet date.
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Note 8.8: Equity
Contributed capital
Contributions by owners (that is, contributed capital and its repayment) are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part
of the income and expenses of the West Gippsland Healthcare Group.
Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contributions by owners. Transfers of net
liabilities arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to owners.
Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions or that have been designated as contributed capital are also treated
as contributed capital.

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income revaluation reserve
The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income revaluation reserve arises on the revaluation of financial assets (such
as equity instruments) measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Where such a financial asset is sold, that portion of the
reserve which relates to that financial asset may be transferred to accumulated surplus/deficit.

Specific restricted purpose reserves
The specific restricted purpose reserve is established where West Gippsland Healthcare Group has possession or title to the funds but has
no discretion to amend or vary the restriction and/or condition underlying the funds received.
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Note 8.9: Economic Dependency
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is dependent on the Department of Health for the majority of its revenue used to
operate the health service. At the date of this report, the Board of Directors has no reason to believe the Department of
Health will not continue to support West Gippsland Healthcare Group.
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Disclosure Index
The Annual Report of the West Gippsland Healthcare Group is
prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation.
This index has been prepared to facilitate identification
of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure
requirements.

Ministerial Directions
Legislation Requirement

Page

Charter and purpose

Legislation

FRD 22I 	Manner of establishment and the relevant
Ministers................................................... 2, 12

FRD 22I 	Application and operation of Freedom of
Information Act 1982.....................................46

FRD 22I

Purpose, functions, powers and duties.............12

FRD 22I

Nature and range of services provided.............10

FRD 22I 	Compliance with building and maintenance
provisions of Building Act 1993..................46-47

FRD 22I 	Activities, programs and achievements for the
reporting period................................ 4, 5, 17-21

FRD 22I 	Application and operation of Public Interest
Disclosure (updated 2020-21)........................48

FRD 22I 	Significant changes in key initiatives and
expectations for the future............................ 4-5

FRD 22I

Management and structure
FRD 22I

Organisational structure.................................15

FRD 22I 	Workforce data / employment and conduct
principles......................................................23
FRD 22I

Occupational Health and Safety.......................24

Statement on National Competition Policy........46

FRD 22I 	Application and operation of Carers Recognition
Act 2012......................................................48
FRD 22I 	Summary of the entity’s environmental
performance.............................................44-45
FRD 22I

Additional information available on request........48

Other relevant reporting directives
FRD 25D

Local Jobs First Act disclosures......................46

Financial information

SD 5.1.4 	Financial Management Compliance attestation....51

FRD 22I

SD 5.2.3 	Declaration in Report of Operations.................51

Summary of the financial results for the year.... 39,41

FRD 22I 	Significant changes in financial position during
the year........................................................39

Attestations

FRD 22I 	Operational and budgetary objectives and
performance against objectives.......................39

Attestation on Data Integrity.................................................51

FRD 22I

Subsequent events........................................39

Attestation on Integrity, Fraud and Corruption........................51

FRD 22I

Details of consultancies under $10,000..........49

FRD 22I

Details of consultancies over $10,000.............49

Other reporting requirements

FRD 22I

Disclosure of ICT expenditure.........................47

• R eporting of outcomes from Statement of Priorities
2020-21 ...............................................................32-37

Attestation on Managing Conflicts of Interest.........................51

• Occupational Violence reporting.......................................24
• Gender Equality Act........................................................48
• Asset Management Accountability Framework (AMAF).......43
• R eporting obligations under the Safe Patient Care Act
2015
....................................................................48
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Photo: The sale of pre-loved items at the Drouin Auxilliary
Opportunity Shop raised $156,000 to purchase a new
fetal monitoring system for the Maternity Department
and medical grade fridges. Pictured from left is Opp
Shop volunteers Marg Ventvelzen, Loraine Fleming and
Committee Treasurer Carol Mallows
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HEAD OFFICE
West Gippsland Hospital
41 Landsborough Street
Warragul, Victoria 3820
Phone: 03 5623 0611
Fax: 03 5623 0896
Email: info@wghg.com.au

128

West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Annual Report 2020-21

